Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON
Central & SOUth To Councillors on the Committee
P la NN1N g Councillor lan Edwards (Chairman)
. Councillor David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman)
CO mmi ttee Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
Councillor Roy Chamdal
Date: WEDNESDAY, 8 C illor Alan Ch
FEBRUARY 2017 ouncillor Alan Chapman
Councillor Jazz Dhillon
Time: 7.00 PM Councillor Janet Duncan
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5, Councillor Manjit Khatra
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH Councillor Brian Stead

STREET, UXBRIDGE,
MIDDLESEX UB8 1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Tuesday, 31 January 2017

Contact: Anisha Teji
Tel: 01895257655
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=123&Year=0

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

2
3
4
5

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-10
Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and the Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation

114 Harmondsworth West Change of use from Use Class 11-20
Road - Drayton D1 (Non-Residential Institutions)
to Use Class B1/D1 (Non- 136 - 141
52467/APP/2016/3892 Residential Institutions/Business)
to use as a training centre and
ancillary video production and
installation of solar panels to side
roof (Retrospective)

Recommendation: Refusal

31 Bryony Close - Yiewsley Erection of two storey side and 21-30
single storey rear extension and
72073/APP/2016/2692 demolition of existing outbuilding. | 142 - 144

Recommendation: Approval

Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation




8 | Land forming part of Brunel Erection of a three storey building | 31 -52
92 Pield Heath Road - to create 3 x 1-bed self contained
flats and 3 x studio flats with 145 - 152
12504/APP/2016/4179 associated cycle parking
Recommendation: Approval
9 | Land to the rear of 54 | Hillingdon | 1 x 2-bed, detached bungalow 53 - 68
& 56 Star Road - East with associated parking and
amenity space involving 153 - 157
70020/APP/2016/4467 demolition of existing garage
block
Recommendation: Refusal
10| Euro Garages, Pinkwell Single storey side extension and 69 - 80
Heathrow North, chiller unit to rear
Shepiston Lane - 158 - 161
17981/APP/2016/3287
Recommendation: Approval
11| 17 Maylands Drive - Uxbridge Erection of boundary fence, 81-92
North single storey outbuilding (for
65665/APP/2016/3230 storage and playspace use 162 - 166

(30sgm)), and stepped access to
rear garden.

Recommendation: Approval

PART Il - MEMBERS ONLY

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or

exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Local

Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

12 ENFORCEMENT REPORT

13
14
15
16

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

93 -100
101 -108
109 - 116
117 - 126
127 - 134

PART | - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee 136 - 166




This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

Agenda ltem 3

HILLINGDON

LONDON

CENTRAL & South Planning Committee

18 January 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors lan Edwards (Chairman), David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman), Roy Chamdal,
Alan Chapman, Jazz Dhillon, Janet Duncan, Raymond Graham, Manjit Khatra and
Brian Stead

Ward Councillors in Attendance
Councillors Richard Mills and Jan Sweeting

LBH Officers Present:

Neil Fraser - Democratic Services Officer, Roisin Hogan - Planning Lawyer, James
Rodger - Head of Planning and Enforcement, Syed Shah - Principle Highway Engineer,
and Meghiji Hirani - Planning Contracts and Information

170. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana, with
Councillor Raymond Graham substituting.

171. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)
Councillor Janet Duncan declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of ltem 7 -
Application 24351/APP/2016/1304 - 45 Frays Avenue, in that she lived on the road.
Councillor Duncan confirmed that she would leave the room when this application was
considered by the Committee.

172. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Agenda
Item 3)
Resolved - that the minutes of the meetings held on 24 November and 13 December

be agreed as a correct record.

173. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)
None.

174. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE

CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that items marked Part | would be considered in public, and items
marked Part |l would be considered in private.

Page 1




175.

1 COLLINGWOOD ROAD - 57541/APP/2016/2713 (Agenda ltem 6)

Change of use from single dwelling house (Use Class C3) to 6 person House of
Multiple Occupancy (Use Class C4).

Planning permission was sought for a change of use from a single family dwelling
house to a house in multiple occupation (Use Class C4) to accommodate 6 persons.
The addendum sheet was highlighted. Members were informed that, subject to the
imposition of conditions including limiting the occupancy to 6 persons, the development
would not result in an unacceptable loss of residential amenity to occupants of
neighbouring dwellings. In addition, the proposal did not raise any highway safety
concerns, and a site supervision condition was imposed to ensure the proposed use
did not have adverse impact on the amenity of neighbours.

The development had been amended through discussion which had resulted in
increased lounge space, further cooking and preparation facilities, and had identified
sufficient on-site car parking. As a result, the proposal would deliver a standard of
accommodation suitable for the purpose applied for, and the application was therefore
recommended for approval, subject to an additional condition relating to the provision
of a crossover to be implemented prior to occupation, and maintained thereafter.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application. Concerns highlighted included the
potential change of character to the local, family area, the potential for antisocial
behaviour due to the nature of the occupants suggested as tenants, parking problems
following the proposed increase in occupants within the dwelling, and the suitability of
the dwelling for disabled occupants. Antisocial behaviour had previously been seen at
the site, following the occupation by a previous tenant, for which the Police had been
requested to intervene. Members were informed that many local residents were
unhappy with the proposed HMO at the application site.

The applicant addressed the Committee, confirming that significant improvements had
been made to the property since purchase, as outlined in the report. Since its
purchase, the property had stood empty, with one exception following an approach
from the NHS disabled unit to temporarily house a disabled person. Reference was
made to previous criminal incidents within and outside the property, and the applicant
asserted that these should have no bearing on any decision relating to the future of the
property. Members were advised that the applicant would be working with the NHS
upon request, potentially to house victims of domestic violence, and that mature and
well behaved tenants would be sought. These could include families or students.

Councillor Richard Mills addressed the Committee as Ward councillor for Brunel, on
behalf of local residents objecting to the application. Councillor Mills highlighted the
proposed increase in occupants from 3 to 6 persons, without a corresponding increase
in bathroom facilities. In addition, the living area per person within the property would
be significantly reduced, particularly bedroom sizes, and a lack of privacy for a ground
floor occupant was cited, as the ground floor bedroom would be opening directly onto
the lounge area. There was no provision outlined within the proposal that would
accommodate wheelchair users, and an existing sewerage problem would likely be
exacerbated by an increase in occupants. A reduction in amenity would be borne out
by parking spaces and bin storage being located very close to ground floor bedroom
windows, and there were also health and safety concerns for occupants leaving the
property. Antisocial behaviour had been seen at the property previously, and there

Page 2




were concerns that potentially volatile tenants could see such behaviour return. The
increase in occupants would also cause parking issues, including the likely parking on
yellow lines.

Members considered the points raised, and sought clarity on the potential change of
character, antisocial behaviour, parking issues, room sizes, provision for wheelchair
users, privacy of downstairs occupants, and amenity space.

Members were informed that there were no external changes to the location, and it was
not considered that the application would have a detrimental impact on the area's
character. With regard to amenity space, privacy, and parking, the proposal met the
Council's guidance on minimum standards for a 6 person dwelling. Amenity space
would likely have been calculated to exclude the parking spaces; therefore all amenity
space was 'useable' space. The front garden was considered to be 'private’, whilst the
outbuilding seen on the plans would not have been included in the calculations, and
conditions were set out to restrict the use of this space.

Gates and walls would ensure ground floor occupant privacy, and whilst parking
spaces were located close to some ground floor windows, other windows opened onto
the garden space. It was suggested that an extension of the existing crossover, to the
adjoining property's crossover, would likely be required to better accommodate resident
vehicles.

Members were unconvinced that the amenity space had been calculated correctly, and
that the front garden would provide a sufficient level of privacy for occupants. For this
reason it was moved that the application be deferred to allow Members to visit the site,
and for the planning officers to resolve the uncertainty over the calculations of amenity
space. This was seconded, put to a vote, and unanimously approved.

Resolved - That the application be deferred to a future meeting of the Committee, to
allow sufficient time for Members to view the site in person, and for
Planning officers to resolve uncertainty over useable amenity space.

176.

45 FRAYS AVENUE - 24351/APP/2016/1304 (Agenda Item 7)

Two storey, 4-bed detached dwelling with habitable roofspace (incorporating a
rear dormer and front/side rooflights), parking and amenity space and
installation of vehicular crossover to front, involving demolition of existing
bungalow.

Officers introduced the report, confirming that the application had been presented to
the Committee on the 13 October 2016, with a recommendation for approval, but was
deferred to enable further details to be sought in respect of the impact to the adjoining
occupiers and the proposed inset dormer windows.

Since then, the applicant had revised the development by reducing its depth, had
replaced the front inset dormer window with a rooflight, and replaced the rear inset
dormer window with a more traditional projecting dormer. In addition, the revised plans
now accurately showed compliance with the 45 degree rule in relation to windows that
serve neighbouring properties. The application was located in an area of special local
character, though as there was no cohesion with the design of existing properties
within the area, it was felt that the proposed application would have no detrimental
impact on the character of the area and the application was therefore recommended for
approval.

Page 3




A petitioner addressed the Committee in objection to the proposal. It was confirmed
that, since the previous Committee meeting, the applicant had worked with local
residents to address their points, though concerns remained. These concerns included
the potential overdominance and overshadowing in relation to neighbouring properties
due to the height and size of the proposed building, as well as the potential for a
precedent to be set for future applications in the area, should permission be granted.
The proposed height of the building, inclusive of flood prevention foundations, would
exceed that of no. 47 Frays Avenue, whilst a kitchen extractor fan would discharge
directly into patio doors of no 43 Frays Avenue. The vehicle crossover arrangement to
the proposed new garages on the east side of the property would bring vehicle activity
close to the living quarters of no. 43, and could result in a loss of green spaces and
spoilage of newly created parking zones. For these reasons, it was requested the
application be deferred until such time as a site visit could be undertaken to accurately
assess the scale and effect of the planning proposal on the local area.

The applicant and agent then addressed the Committee. The applicant confirmed that
they understood the local resident's concerns, though these concerns were not shared
by all local residents, many of whom understood the family's need for an expanded
family home. The agent confirmed that significant work had been undertaken to
address the concerns of residents and of the Committee since the last meeting. The
footprint of the building was significantly smaller than that of the proposed development
previously, in an effort to reduce any overshadowing or overdominance. Overall, it was
expected that the final height of the building would be somewhat higher than adjoining
properties, though this was not expected to be a material difference, and was still to be
determined. The current building line was forward of no. 47, whilst the new property
would be set back, into line with the neighbouring property thereby improving the street
scene.

Councillor Jan Sweeting addressed the Committee as Ward councillor for West
Drayton, on behalf of residents objecting to the proposal. Residents requested the
Committee clarify why Members had not visited the site, why the application had been
previously put forward for approval when in breach of the 45 degree rule, and what was
the final maximum height of the building? Councillor Sweeting concluded by stating that
previous applications in the area had been refused due to height, and requested that
the application be deferred to that Members could visit the site before making a final
decision.

The Chairman then read a statement on behalf of Councillor Dominic Gilham, Ward
Councillor for West Drayton, in support of the application. Councillor Gilham confirmed
that the applicant had worked with both planning officers and local residents to
overcome their concerns. As a result, the total floor plan at the rear of the property had
been reduced to minimise any shading issues. The plans showed a building no higher
than the neighbouring property, without the balcony concern raised previously. The
proposal was a quality build for a family home that would enhance the street scene of
the road, and it was therefore requested that the Committee approve the application.

Members sought clarity on the points raised above. Officers confirmed that with regard
to the proposed amendments to the building line and vehicle crossover, the setting
back of the property, together with the landscaping proposed, would improve the visual
amenity of the street scene. In relation to the 45 degree angle and the previous
recommendation for approval, this was due to an error in assessing the impact of the
first floor windows.

Page 4




The size of the proposed bedrooms, and relevant parking provision, met the Council's
minimum standards. With regard to the extractor, such matters were not normally
subject to conditions, but if the Committee felt strongly, the extractor could be relocated
to another part of the building.

The maximum height of the building was still to be finalised, thought it was not
expected to be materially different to that of the plans brought before the Committee.
Officers confirmed that if material changes were proposed, then the application would
need to be brought back to the Committee for further approval. However, the
Committee could approve the application with the inclusion of a further condition
limiting the maximum height of the building, relevant to that of neighbouring properties.
It was suggested that authority be delegated to the Head of Planning to agree this
height restriction.

Members discussed the proposed site visit, but felt that this was not necessary in this
instance. Members were minded to approve the application, subject to the suggested
height restriction. Approval, subject to conditions, was therefore moved, seconded, and
when put to a vote, unanimously approved.

Resolved - (a) That the application be approved; and
(b)  That the Head of Planning be delegated authority to add a
condition setting out the maximum building height, relevant to
neighbouring properties.

177.

203 PARK ROAD - 19088/APP/2016/2395 (Agenda Item 14)
Single storey detached outbuilding to rear for use as an ancillary granny annex

The Chairman confirmed that all Committee members had received an email that had
raised an issue relating to the application that was not a material planning issue, and
which therefore carried no weight.

Officers confirmed that application was deferred at the meeting of 13 October 2016 for
the submission of revised plans, as the originally submitted plans showed trees on the
land adjacent to the proposed building and it was not clear how these would be
affected, alongside concerns around the size and height of the building and the impact
this would have on neighbours.

Revised plans had been submitted, but as these failed to address all concerns raised
previously, it was recommended that the application be refused.

The officer recommendation was moved, seconded, and when put to a vote,
unanimously approved.

Resolved - That the application be refused.

178.

UNIT 116, INTU UXBRIDGE, HIGH STREET - 54171/APP/2016/3897 (Agenda ltem
15)

Change of use of part of Unit 116 from retail (Class A1) to restaurant/Cafe (Class
A3) to create four Class A3 units with High Street frontage, as well as external
alterations

Planning permission was sought for change of use of part of Unit 116, Intu, which is

Page 5




currently occupied by Debenhams which falls within use class A1 (retail) to use class
A3 (food and drink). An informative, as set out on the addendum, was highlighted.

As the proposed change of use would not result in demonstrable harm to the existing
retail shopping provision and the benefits to the vitality of the centre would outweigh
any harm, it was recommended that planning consent be granted.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.

Resolved - That the application be approved.

179.

BRUNEL UNIVERSITY - 532/APP/2016/3943 (Agenda Item 8)
Erection of a conservatory to Eliott Jaques Building.

20:35 - Councillor Janet Duncan returned to the room prior to the officer introducing the
report.

Planning permission was sought for the erection of a conservatory to the Elliot Jacques
Building. Officers confirmed that whilst the site was within the Green Belt area, the
development would have no impact on the Green Belt.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.

Resolved - That the application be approved.

180.

BRUNEL UNIVERSITY - 532/APP/2016/3946 (Agenda Item 9)

Erection of a conservatory to Bishop Hall Building.

Planning permission was sought for the erection of a conservatory to the Bishop Hall
Building. Officers confirmed that whilst the site was within the Green Belt area, the

development would have no impact on the Green Belt.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.

Resolved - That the application be approved.

181.

SHELL SERVICE STATION, HARMONDSWORTH ROAD - 62937/ADV/2016/87
(Agenda Item 10)

Installation of 5 x non illuminated fascia signs.

Planning permission was sought for the installation of five non illuminated fascia signs
at the existing Shell Service Station located on the corner of Harmondsworth Road with
Holloway Lane. Officers confirmed that whilst the site was within the metropolitan
Green Belt area, the development would have no impact on the Green Belt.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.

Page 6




Resolved - That the application be approved.

182. | SHELL SERVICE STATION, HARMONDSWORTH ROAD - 62937/APP/2016/3566
(Agenda Item 11)
Installation of ATM unit. (Retrospective)
Retrospective planning permission was sought for the installation of an ATM machine
at the existing Shell Service Station located on the corner of Harmondsworth Road with
Holloway Lane. Officers confirmed that whilst the site was within the metropolitan
Green Belt area, the development would have no impact on the Green Belt, visual
amenity of the application property and street scene, and would not cause a loss of
residential amenity or highway safety.
The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.
Resolved - That the application be approved.

183. | HILLINGDON ABBOTS RFC, GAINSBOROUGH ROAD - 72365/APP/2016/4158
(Agenda Item 12)
Extension to changing rooms
Planning permission was sought for the erection of an extension to the changing
rooms. Officers confirmed that the proposed extension was acceptable in regards to
size, height and design, and would not cause harm to the character and appearance of
the existing building, or to the visual amenity of the surrounding Green Belt. The
extension to the changing rooms would not impact on the street scene and would not
impact on residential amenity.
The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.
Resolved - That the application be approved.

184. | 210 CENTRAL AVENUE - 71772/APP/2016/2019 (Agenda ltem 13)
Single storey side/rear extension, first floor rear extension, conversion of
roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer and conversion of roof from
hip to gable end and conversion of dwelling to 2 x 3-bed flats with associated
amenity space.
Officers highlighted the reasons for refusal as set out on the report.
The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.
Resolved - That the application be refused.

185. | 98 COWLEY ROAD - 8504/APP/2016/3871 (Agenda Item 16)

Change of use from Use Class A1 (Shops) to Use Class A5 (Hot Food

Page 7




Takeaways) involving alterations to elevations

Planning permission was sought for the change of use from retail (Use Class A1) to hot
food takeaway (Use Class A5). It was considered that the proposal would not harm the
visual amenity of the site or its wider setting, nor, subject to considerations requiring
the submission and approval of details relating to the proposed flue and any plant and
the restriction of operation hours, would it cause harm to the amenity of nearby
residents. Accordingly, it was recommended that the application be approved.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed by the
Committee upon being put to a vote.

Resolved - That the application be approved.

186.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 17)
RESOLVED:
1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer's report was agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in this report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing the
formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

187.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 18)

Councillor Jazz Dhillon confirmed that as he had reported the site for enforcement, he
would not be voting on the item.

RESOLVED:
2. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in this report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing the
formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

Page 8




188. | ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 19)
RESOLVED:
3. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in this report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing the
formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.55 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Neil Fraser on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making; however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 114 HARMONDSWORTH ROAD WEST DRAYTON

Development: Change of use from doctors surgery (Use Class D1) to a mixed use
comprising education/training centre and ancillary video production (Use
Class B1/D1) and installation of solar panels to side roof (Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 52467/APP/2016/3892

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250)
16/114/HRWD/102
4304/10
16/114/HRWD/101 Rev. B

Date Plans Received: 21/10/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 20/10/2016
Date Application Valid: 02/12/2016 28/11/2016
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the change of use from
doctors surgery (Use Class D1) to a mixed use comprising education/training centre and
ancillary video production (Use Class B1/D1) and installation of solar panels to side roof.
Whilst the proposal would have an acceptable impact upon the character and appearance
of the property and street scene and subject to a number of conditions restricting the
hours of operation, would not result in a loss of residential amenity to occupants of
neighbouring properties or an increased demand for on street parking, concerns are
raised about the loss of the health facility. The application does not confirm that the
property has been marketed for a similar or other community use. As such, given the
failure to provide justification to demonstrate that there is no requirement for the existing
facility or that adequate alternative provision is available to meet the foreseeable needs of
existing and potential users, the proposal is considered to result in the unacceptable loss
of a health service. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy R11 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to provide sufficient information to show that the doctors
surgery/community use is no longer viable or required by any other such users or where
the previous occupiers have been relocated to. The proposal, therefore, results in the
unacceptable loss of a health service use and important community facility, contrary to
Policy CL1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policy R11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policies 3.16 and 3.17 of the London Plan (2016) and the NPPF.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
R11 Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for
education, social, community and health services
LPP 3.16 (2015) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure
NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development
NPPF8 NPPF - Promoting healthy communities
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application

as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



3.2

3.3

The application site comprises of a two storey building, formerly used as a doctors surgery
which is located on the Western side of Harmondsworth Road which lies within a
residential area within the Developed Area as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The building does not benefit from any off street
parking. The frontage of the site has a pedestrian access over a paved yard to the front.
Solar panels have been installed on the Southern roofslope. The building is being used as a
training centre/video production.

Proposed Scheme

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for change of use from doctors
surgery (Use Class D1) to a mixed use comprising education/training centre and ancillary
video production (Use Class B1/D1) and installation of solar panels to side roof.

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no recent planning history of relevance to this application site.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Policies:

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

R11 Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for education, social,
community and health services

LPP 3.16 (2015) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF8 NPPF - Promoting healthy communities

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

Central
PART 1

& South Planning Committee -
- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

6 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 6.12.16 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 5.1.17

1 letter of objection has been received raising an objection to the extension of this building. The letter
of objection also raises concerns about occupants of the building banging the fence.

Officer note: The application does not seek permission for extensions to the property.

A petition of objection has been received raising concerns about the existing hours of operation and
the impact upon parking in a residential area.

Internal Consultees
HIGHWAY OFFICER:

This (retrospective) application is for a change of use from D1 (Doctor's Surgery) to non-residential
business (B1/D1) at a property in Harmondsworth Road West Drayton.

The property has been used as a doctor's surgery for some considerable time. There is no off-street
parking available at the front or rear of the property so any parking will add to the existing parking
stress in the locality. There is already significant existing parking stress in the surrounding roads as
not all properties have off-street car parking. It is proposed to change the use from a doctor's
surgery to a video production use. This section of Harmondsworth Road is the service road part and
there are no on-street parking restrictions in place. There are 2 staff offices shown on the plans and
in the application form the number of employees is listed as 2 full-time and 1 part-time which should
not create significantly greater traffic and parking than the existing surgery use. However there are 4
training rooms shown on the plans which suggests that there is the potential for a larger number of
visitors. | am concerned that the hours of operation are from 0830 am to 0830 pm Monday to
Saturday in a predominantly residential area. If the times were reduced to 6:00 or 6:30 pm then this
would help with on-street parking turnover. Is there anyway we can limit the number of visitors to the
site as this would obviously limit the traffic and parking numbers? The application shows no
provision for off-street secure covered cycle parking nor any refuse facilities but these facilities can
be conditioned. There should be at least 2 secure covered cycle parking spaces provided on site.
On the basis of the above comments if the number of employees/visitors and the hours of operation
can be limited this would restrict the possibility of on-street parking stress being increased. If such
conditions can be implemented | am not unduly concerned over the potential impacts of such a
development.

EPU

No objection subject to a condition restricting the hours of use: 08:30 to 20:30 Monday to Saturday
not on Sundays or bank holidays.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
THE PRINCIPLE OF THE USE

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The National Planning Policy Framework emphasises the role of the planning system in
enabling the provision of homes and buildings which are consistent with the principles of
sustainable development.

Policy CL1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
states that:

"The Council will ensure that community and social infrastructure is provided in Hillingdon
to cater for the needs of the existing community and future populations by:

1. Resisting the loss of community facilities, and where the loss of these facilities is
justified it will seek to ensure that resulting development compensates these uses to
ensure no net loss."

Policy R11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks justification for the loss of community/health use, which applies to current D1 uses
or sites currently vacant and previously in D1 use.

London Plan policies 3.16 and 3.17 reiterate the need to resist the loss of existing health
care facilities unless alternative provision of sufficient justification for their loss can be
demonstrated. Policy 3.16 states:

"Proposals which would result in a loss of social infrastructure in areas of defined need for
that type of social infrastructure without realistic proposals for reprovision should be
resisted."

Policy 3.17 goes on to say:

"Where local health services are being changed, the Mayor will expect to see replacement
services operational before the facilities they replace are closed, unless there is adequate
justification for the change."

No evidence of any marketing of the property for its authorised use, including the length of
time such marketing may have taken place and the avenues that this took has been
provided. It is, therefore, considered that the application has not demonstrated that there is
sufficient justification for the loss of this community facility. As such, the proposal results in
the loss of a health service use, but fails to provide justification to demonstrate that there is
no requirement for the existing facility or that adequate alternative provision is available to
meet the foreseeable needs of existing and potential users. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policy CL1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policy R11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), Policies 3.16 and 3.17 of the London Plan (2016).

Density of the proposed development

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires that all new development achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings,
alterations and extensions'. In addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) acknowledges that 'development will not be
permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the existing street scene'. The
emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the character of the surrounding
area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning Authority will seek to ensure that new
development within residential areas complements or improves the amenity and character
of the area'’

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the installation of the solar
panels on the Southern roofslope. It is considered that the solar panels do not represent an
incongruous addition to the property and as such the proposal does not have a have a
negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site or the surrounding area in compliance
with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012) and Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development protects the amenities of
existing dwellings in terms of sunlight, outlook and privacy.

The existing building has not been extended and no additional windows are proposed. As
such, the proposal would not result in additional loss of daylight and/or sunlight to adjoining
residential properties. Any outlook from the new dwelling would be similar to the outlook
from the existing consultation rooms. As such, it is considered to be consistent with Policy
BE20 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Policy OE1 states permission will not normally be granted for uses and structures which
are, or are likely to become, detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding
properties or the area generally due to their siting or appearance, the storage or display of
items, traffic generation and congestion, and noise and vibration emissions. The
application property is located in a residential area in close proximity to residential
properties. The use of the property as a doctors surgery would have been previously
restricted to Monday to Friday day time hours. Concerns have been raised that the current
unauthorised use of the property operates 7 days a week and day time and evening hours.
It is considered that the hours of operation could cause a loss of residential amenity to
occupants of neighbouring properties by way of noise and disturbance. The Councils EPU
Officer has recommended imposing a condition to restrict the hours of operation of the
facility. The applicant has agreed to a condition restricting the hours of use to between
Monday - Saturday 08.30 - 18.30. If the application were considered acceptable in all other
respects, it is considered that it would be reasonable to restrict the hours of operation by
condition.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

There is no off-street parking available at the front or rear of the property so any parking will
add to the existing parking stress in the locality. There is already significant existing parking
stress in the surrounding roads as not all properties have off-street car parking. This
section of Harmondsworth Road is the service road part and there are no on-street parking
restrictions in place. There are 2 staff offices shown on the plans and in the application
form the number of employees is listed as 2 full-time and 1 part-time which should not
create significantly greater traffic and parking than the authorised surgery use. The
Highways Officer has suggested that a condition limiting the hours of operation would limit
the demand for on street parking in peak times (evenings and weekend) and that there
should be at least 2 secure covered cycle parking spaces provided on site. The applicant
has confirmed agreement to a condition restricting the hours of operation and has provided
a revised plan to show the provision of secure cycle storage. As such it is considered that
if the application proposal were considered acceptable in principle, conditions could be
imposed to ensure that the proposal complied with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

No issues raised.
Disabled access

No issues raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Sustainable waste management

No issues raised.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The issues are addressed in the section above.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments raised within the consultation process are addressed in the sections
above.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Since the end of August 2015 applications which are for development which was not
authorised need to be assessed as to whether the unauthorised development was
intentional. In this case officers have no indication that this was an intentional breach of
planning control. However, should members agree to the recommendation then the
expediency of enforcement action will need to be considered through the provision of an
additional report.

Other Issues

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



No other issues raised.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Whilst the proposal would have an acceptable impact upon the character and appearance
of the property and street scene and subject to a number of conditions restricting the hours
of operation, would not result in a loss of residential amenity to occupants of neighbouring
properties or an increased demand for on street parking, concerns are raised about the
loss of the health facility. The application does not confirm that the property has been
marketed for the same or a similar community use. As such, given the failure to provide
justification to demonstrate that there is no requirement for the existing facility or that
adequate alternative provision is available to meet the foreseeable needs of existing and
potential users, the proposal is considered to result in the unacceptable loss of a health
service facility and the application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



% =
UNs 2
Oo BT
0n&sok
o e5-R
L
Oquw%
BlSSMM
Lsgmm
NLn.nM:
0|emma N
DHwnum m
NF%,l_“mm |
oRpmm
o e
- ok
=
[&]
~
-
o
o] 2 z
5 Y
3 2 e
g |7 S
5 S
ST
S -—
o i
= —
n
o] S p
o : mzw
= 2 ;
: Rm 8
I mz QOu
5 |zt mw_
g 152 :
i + m
< 28 |: 3
: e |2 5
as =
m =
o
. o
> .m..mm
§eist s
o 3% € :
= S.W.m4..m M %
SRR t 8
B omdu% : 82
2 Lily "t
= memm mt.dnw
» mmmmmﬂ.mmmw
. a..:rl ..IC_.J 8
o mmwM%Amwwm
- .tv,..muDecm.nd
o %poptmnﬂowm
2 Mmm%haeto
rsw.c.@%mmmm%
o c e 2 65 :
me?ﬁ%pwzw
SCcIers1
nCC.T.O
AUX 0
e©ﬁml...0




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 31 BRYONY CLOSE HILLINGDON

Development: Change of use of property from House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) to a
single dwelling and erection of two storey side and single storey rear
extension and demolition of existing outbuilding

LBH Ref Nos: 72073/APP/2016/2692

Drawing Nos: AG/CA/31/16 Rev. AG

Date Plans Received: 12/07/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 25/10/2016

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application property comprises of a two storey end-terraced property located in the
South Western corner of Bryony Close, a residential cul-de-sac located within the
Developed Area as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012). A larger detached outbuilding is located to the front/side of the property
with a smaller older outbuilding to the rear. At the site visit it became apparent that the
property was being occupied and used as an HMO (of up to 6 people).

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey side extension
and single storey rear extension involving demolition of the existing large outbuilding.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

There is no planning history relating to this application site.
2, Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

The Violet Tenants and Residents Association and 11 neighbouring properties were
consulted by letter dated 26.7.16 and a site notice was displayed to the front of the site
which expired on 8.9.16.

A second consultation was sent out to the same consultees on 26.10.16 following the

change of the description of development to include the change of use of the property from
the House in Multiple Occupation (Sui Generis) to single dwelling (Use Class C3).

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



A petition of objection has been received with 20 signatures raising concerns relating to:
1. The unauthorised use of the property as an HMO and future concerns about the

extended property being used as an HMO.
2. Increased demand for parking within the cul-de-sac.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

neighbours.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main considerations are the design and impact on the character of the existing
property, the impact upon the street scene and locality, the impact upon the amenities of
adjoining occupiers, the reduction in size of the rear garden and car parking provision.

The applicants have confirmed that the property is currently used as an HMO (C4 use).
The current application seeks permission for a two storey side and single storey rear
extension. The applicant has advised that it is the intention for the property to be used as a
single private dwellinghouse rather than C4 use.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or with the scale, form.
architectural composition and proportions of the original building.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



Paragraph 5.1 of the adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS:
Residential Extensions requires all extensions and buildings of two or more storeys to be
set back a minimum of 1 m from the side boundary of the property for the full height of the
building. Paragraph 5.3 of the SPD specifies that where two storey side extensions are
proposed in the case where the side of the house adjoins a road, there may be some
scope for flexibility on the set-in. It further specifies that where an existing return building
line exists, any extension should ensure that the openness of the area is maintained and
that the return building line is not exceeded. Side extensions are required to appear
subordinate in scale and to not exceed two thirds the width of the original dwelling.
Paragraph 5.7 states that there is no requirement for a side extension to be set back from
the main front wall for end terraced dwellings.

The street scene in this locality is characterised in the main by terraced properties. The
application site occupies a large corner plot located at the head of the close. The proposed
extension, measuring 3.4m in width, and set back by 1m at first floor level, would appear as
a subordinate addition with sufficient space being retained to the side boundary to maintain
the spacious corner plot character. The demolition of the existing larger outbuilding is
welcomed and would assist in maintaining the spacious character of this corner plot. The
proposed side extension would not, therefore, detract from the character, appearance and
symmetry of the small terrace of houses of which it forms a part or from the visual
amenities of the street scene and the surrounding area.

Paragraph 3.3 of the HDAS states that single storey rear extensions proposed on semi-
detached houses with a plot measuring 5 m wide or more should be no more than 3.6 m
deep. Likewise paragraph 3.7 states that such extensions should be no more than 3 m in
height (with a flat roof). This is to ensure that the extension appears subordinate to the
main house.

The proposal includes the erection of a single storey rear extension projecting 3.6m to the
rear of the original dwelling with a flat roof measuring 3m in height which complies with the
SPD. As a result it is considered that the proposed extensions would not have a negative
impact upon the visual amenity of the site or the surrounding area in compliance with
Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and
policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

The proposed extensions would not have an unacceptable effect on neighbouring
properties by way of loss of outlook, loss of daylight, overbearing or over-shadowing. The
proposed extension would not be in breach of the 45 degree line of sight from the rear
elevation of either dwelling flanking the application site. It is recommended that a condition
be imposed to prevent the insertion of any first floor side facing windows to ensure that the
proposal would not, in the future, result in a loss of privacy to the occupants of adjacent
number 30 Bryony Avenue. The proposal would therefore not constitute an un-neighbourly
form of development and would be in compliance with the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) BE20, BE21 and BE24 and the SPD HDAS:
Residential Extensions.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the proposals,
would maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016).

In terms of the garden area at least 100 sg.m of rear garden should be retained to provide

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



adequate amenity space for the extended dwelling. The resultant amenity space would be
significantly over 100 sq. m (some 240sg.m) which would be in excess of paragraph 5.13
of the SPD HDAS: Residential Extensions requirement and comply with Policy BE23 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The application would retain parking space for two cars on the hard-standing in front of the
principal elevation. Returning the property to a single family use would probably reduce the
demand for parking compared to when in multiple occupation. As such, the proposal would
be in compliance with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

Concerns have been about the use of the property as an HMO. The applicants have
confirmed that the property has been used as a 6 Bed HMO and was licensed in April
2016. This has been confirmed by the HMO officer. The use of this property by up to 6
residents can be carried out without the need for planning permission. The resulting
extended dwelling would be a large 6-bedroom property, however this does not in itself
mean that the property would be used as an HMO. The applicant has confirmed that the
extended dwelling would be used as a single private dwellinghouse. The use of the
extended property as an HMO could give rise to additional parking demand that cannot be
accommodated on site or on the local road network. It is therefore considered expedient to
impose a condition to restrict the extended property to use as a single family dwellinghouse
within the C3 Use Class.

The application is recommended for conditional approval.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, number AG/CA/31/16 Rev.
AG.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

4 HO5 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 30 Bryony Close.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 HO7 No roof gardens

Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance or
emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace,
balcony, patio or similar amenity area.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The outbuilding shown to be demolished on Drawing No. AG/CA/31/16 Rev. AG shall be
carried out and completed prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

7 MRD4 Single Dwellings Occupation

The development hereby approved shall not be sub-divided to form additional dwelling
units or used in multiple occupation without a further express permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the premises remain as a single dwelling until such time as the Local
Planning Authority may be satisfied that conversion would be in accordance with Policy H7
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

31 Bryony Close

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72073/APP/2016/2692 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sowtiye 30 February 2017

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 92 PIELD HEATH ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Erection of a three storey building to create 3 x 1-bed self contained flats and
3 x studio flats with associated cycle parking

LBH Ref Nos: 12504/APP/2016/4179

Drawing Nos: PL/001 Rev.
PL/002 Rev.
PL/003 Rev.
PL/004 Rev.
PL/005 Rev.
PL/006 Rev.
Design and Access Statement

>>>W0W >

Date Plans Received: 15/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/11/2016
1. SUMMARY

This application has been submitted in response to refusal of application reference
number 12504/APP/2015/3703, a decision which was upheld on appeal.

The proposal seeks planning permission for a three-storey block of flats to provide 3 x
studio units and 3 x 1 bed units. This is the same proposal as considered on appeal in
terms of submitted drawings and supporting material.

The proposal has been assessed against current policies and guidance for new housing
development in terms of the potential effects of the design, scale and site layout on the
character of the surrounding area, the potential impact on the residential amenities of
adjoining and nearby occupiers, and on highways related matters including access,
traffic/pedestrian safety and parking in the vicinity.

Whilst upholding the Council's refusal, the Inspector did not agree with the Council in
respect of reasons for refusal numbers 1, 2 and 3 but upheld the Council's position in
respect of reason for refusal number 4. These are material considerations in
determination of the current application. The Inspector found the draft unilateral agreement
submitted with the appeal to be flawed. However, it is also material that the Inspector was
satisfied that if an appropriate legal agreement could be secured which prevents
occupiers from holding a permit, (as opposed to applying for one) the development would
be acceptable in this regard.

In summary, given the position adopted by the Inspector, which is an important material
consideration, the proposal is considered to relate satisfactorily to the character and
appearance of the locality and would comply with policies BE13, BE15, BE19, BE20 and
BE21 of the of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies, Policies 3.5 and
5.3 of the London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and on

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



completion of an agreement under Section 106 to prevent occupants of the development
and No. 92a Pield Heath Road from holding a car parking permit within the Parking
Management Scheme.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Director of Planning and Community
Services to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

1. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission, subject to the following:

A) That the Council enter into a Section 106 Agreement or other appropriate
legislation to ensure:

i) that restricts the use of the land by prohibiting occupation of any of the flats
within the property and No.92a by anyone holding a permit.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Councils reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months, or any other period
deemed appropriate that delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and
Enforcement to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision
which meets the council's approved parking standards to service the proposed
dwellings. The development would therefore lead to additional on street parking
to the detriment of public and highway safety and is therefore contrary to Policies
AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.'

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers PL/001 Rev. A,
PL/002 Rev. B, PL/003 Rev. B, PL/004 Rev. A, PL/005 Rev. A, PL/006 Rev. A and and
shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13 and BE38
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy
5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2016).

4 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (2016) Policy 5.12.

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON:
To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan
policy 3.8, is achieved and maintained.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7
AM13

AM14
BE13
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.8
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.4
NPPF1
NPPF6
NPPF7

3 159

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) An inclusive environment

(2015) Local character

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147

Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5

The applicant is advised that the site has moderate public transport accessibility
(PTAL=3). It is located within the Hillingdon Hospital Parking Management Zone. The
proposal does not include provision for any car parking and the development is only be
acceptable subject to a restriction on all resident's eligibility to apply for parking permits
within the parking zone. The applicant is requested to draw any potential occupiers
attention to the fact that they will not be able to secure a parking permit

6

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London
Borough of Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the
London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL
Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must
notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction
works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by
submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.
The Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL
that is payable. Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and
Commencement Notice prior to commencement of the development may result in
surcharges being imposed. The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

7 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

8 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

9 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

10 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is irregular in shape and comprises a vacant/unused parcel of land located to the
west of 92 Pield Heath Road, a betting office on the ground floor with residential above,
known as 92A Pield Heath Road. There is a roundabout to the west with Colham Road and
a residential block comprising key worker accommodation associated with Hillingdon
Hospital beyond, and to the north lies 51 Colham Road, a detached two storey house. This
part of Colham Road and Pield Heath Road comprises a mix of commercial and residential
uses and the application site lies within the developed area as identified in the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility (PTAL) Level of 3 (on a scale where 6
represents the highest level of accessibility).

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the erection of a three storey building to provide 3 x 1-bed self
contained flats and 3 x studio flats with associated cycle parking.

The proposal would be of a modern design and measure 8.6m high with a flat roof, 10m
deep at its deepest x 18m at its widest. It would have an internal footprint of 104 sgm. The
accommodation provided would be as follows:

Ground floor:

Flat 1 - 1 bedroom = 53 sqm
Flat 2 - studio apartment = 38 sqm

First floor:
Flat 3 - 1 bedroom =53 sqm
Flat 4 - studio apartment = 38 sqm

Second floor:
Flat 5 - 1 bedroom = 53 sqm
Flat 6 - studio apartment = 38 sqm

The total area of usable amenity space, including balconies at first and second floor levels
will be approximately 72sq m. The two ground floor properties will each have designated
amenity space fronting onto Colham Road, enclosed with picket fencing. Individual
balconies for the upper floor flats would each measure 3sgm

Six cycle storage units will be provided to the rear of the proposed development. There is
no parking proposed for the development. The planning permission granted under Ref:
12504/APP/2010/263 provided a formal arrangement for car parking space for 92a Pield
Heath Road. This will be lost as a result of the proposal (See highways comments below).

3.3 Relevant Planning History

12504/APP/2015/3703 Land Forming Part Of 92 Pield Heath Road Hillingdon

Erection of a three storey building to create 3 x 1-bed self contained flats and 3 x studio flats wit
associated cycle parking

Decision: 16-02-2016 Refused Appeal: 07-11-2016 Dismissed

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission was sought under reference number 12504/APP/2015/3703 for
erection of a three storey building to create 3 x 1-bed self contained flats and 3 x studio
flats with associated cycle parking. This application was refused for the following reasons:

1. The development by virtue of its design, that includes a flat roof, height, bulk, proposed
materials and appearance, would be fail to accord with the character of the area and would
appear visually incongruous when viewed in the context of the immediately adjacent
buildings. The proposal is thus contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5
and 7.4 of the London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



2. The development proposed fails to provide a sufficient level of the private amenity space.
This is considered to demonstrate that the proposal would represent an overdevelopment
of the the site. Notwithstanding public open space that might exist within the area, the lack
of suitable on-site provision of private amenity space would fail to provide a suitable living
environment for future residents and is therefore contrary to Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The limited separation distance of 7 metres to the development to the eastern boundary
shared with 92 Pield Heath Road, and the close proximity to the single storey element of 92
Pield Heath Road to the south, in combination with the layout of the ground floor Flat 1 (as
detailed on drawing number PL/002 Rev. B) would result in a restricted outlook to Bedroom
1 and the kitchen failing to provide for an appropriate level of residential amenity for future
residents. This lack of a suitable outlook to these windows is considered to demonstrate
that the proposal would represent an overdevelopment of the the site and is contrary to
Policies BE19 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision which
meets the Council's approved parking standards to service the proposed dwellings,
resulting in additional pressure for on street parking in an area where there is already very
high demand for on street parking and the development would therefore lead to additional
on street parking to the detriment of public and highway safety and is therefore contrary to
Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and

the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The proposal was subject of a subsequent appeal which was dismissed and the issues
considered by the Inspector are covered in the relevant sections of the report below.

Planning permission was granted under Ref: 12504/APP/2010/26 for installation of 1.8m
high close boarded fence with vehicular gate and hardstanding for use as parking on the
Colham Road frontage and fence and a gate on the Pield Heath Road frontage. The car
parking space within the site was for 92a Pield Heath Road. This will be lost as a result of
the development and if approved, it is considered that the Section 106 needs to include a
requirement that the occupiers of the residential unit cannot hold a car parking permit for
the PMS.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

6 adjoining occupiers were consulted by letter dated 20/10/2015 a site notice was displayed on
29/10/2015. No comments were received.

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

a. The site has moderate public transport accessibility (PTAL=3).
b. The site is located within the Hillingdon Hospital Parking Management Zone.

c. The proposal does not include provision for any car parking. This would only be acceptable
subject to a restriction on all resident's eligibility to apply for parking permits within the parking zone.

Subject to the above, there are no highway objections.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is within the developed area. It is open, vacant land which currently has very
limited beneficial use, specifically the formal parking of a single vehicle. The site is not
considered to be garden land, for which there are policies which may prevent its
development. The site is within a sustainable location. The construction of a flatted scheme
on this site would increase housing supply of the Borough and make use of what is
otherwise vacant brownfield site. The proposal is not considered to be an inappropriate
form of development in this locality and thus accords with the objectives of the NPPF and
London Plan Policy 3.5. As such, the principle of residential development in this location is
considered acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of the HDAS states that site densities are of only limited value when
considering the suitability of smaller housing schemes, although they can provide a useful
initial tool. Specific density standards are set out in the UDP/LDF and the London Plan,
although the ranges set out in the London Plan are more appropriate to larger sites and will
not be used in the assessment of schemes of less than 10 units. This proposal is for six
units and therefore the provisions of paragraph 4.1 does not apply.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not within an area of archaeological interest, within a Conservation Area or an
Area of Special Character. There are no listed buildings on the site or in the vicinity.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the layout and appearance of new development should "harmonise with the
existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF (2011) notes the importance
of achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that 'Permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions.'

Paragraph 4.27 of the adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS:

Residential Layouts states that building lines within a scheme should relate to the street
pattern, although in some instances varied building lines can achieve diversity and interest.

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



In this case, as a corner site, the development has to successfully address two frontages.
The proposed building is set back between 2.5m and 4m from the back edge of the
footpath on the Colham Road frontage and just under 2 metres on the Pield Heath Road
frontage. This allows an opportunity for landscaping to soften the development at
pedestrian level. On Colham Road the development is generally on the same building line
as the adjoining properties. On Pield Heath Road the development is set back further than
the buildings to the north, which front directly onto the back edge of the footpath. Given this,
the siting of the development is considered to be acceptable.

This area is not characterised by any single design approach and contains a wide variety of
buildings, in terms of their design and scale, including two storey 1920's-1930's style
development adjoining the site to the east, and further along bungalows and more recent
1990's development opposite the site to the west, with 1970's flat roofed three storey flats
further along. In this context the modern approach taken to the design of the building is
considered acceptable, particularly given that its overall scale and height is comparable to
other properties in the immediate locality. The previous application (Ref:
12504/APP/2015/3703) was refused on the grounds that the proposal, by reason of its
design, flat roof, height, bulk, proposed materials and appearance, would be fail to accord
with the character of the area and would appear visually incongruous when viewed in the
context of the immediately adjacent buildings. In consideration of this the Inspector
commented as follows:

"13. The appeal site is an irregularly shaped parcel of land, approximately 290 m2 in area,
located adjacent to 92 Pield Road and at the south end of Colham Road. The area is mixed
in character, being predominantly residential but with a small terrace of commercial
properties immediately adjoining the appeal site and the large campus of Hillingdon
Hospital to the south west, on the opposite side of Pield Heath Road. The area around the
appeal site is very diverse in architectural style and built form, with the buildings covering a
wide age range.

14. The proposed development is a three storey, flat roofed, building of a contemporary
design. Whilst this would be different in appearance from the two storey, traditionally built,
commercial terrace that adjoins the appeal site to the east, it would be of a similar overall
height, and the use of white render on the lower two storeys and grey metal cladding on the
third storey would provide some commonality with the adjacent terrace. It would also be of
a similar overall height to the red brick, modern, detached house that adjoins the appeal
site to the north.

15. Immediately to the west of the appeal site on Colham Road are a number of long,
modern, three storey blocks with pitched roofs and finished in brickwork and coloured
render, and which differ significantly in appearance from the commercial terrace. Beyond
Colham Road there are further blocks of three and four storey buildings. The building on
the appeal site, having some shared characteristics with both groups of buildings, would
act as a transition between the two.

16. The south side of Pield Heath Road in the vicinity of the appeal site has a markedly
different character, with an older two storey building, formerly a public house, adjacent to
two mid-twentieth century red brick houses and a new build block of flats in buff brickwork,
standing to the east of Colham Green Road. West of Colham Green Road, the Hillingdon
Hospital site contains a parking area with trees on the boundary and a number of very large
blocks of buildings.

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



17. Whilst the proposed building would not have features such as traditional pitched roofs,
bay window frontages, large window openings and exposed brickwork/render finishes, that
feature on some of the nearby buildings, within the overall context of both the immediately
adjacent buildings and the wider area, it would add to the existing architectural diversity of
the locality and, of itself, the design of the building would be well proportioned and cohesive.
The proposed development would, in addition, remove an area of currently unused and
slightly unsightly land which would represent a qualitative improvement to the area.

18. The National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) states that local planning
authorities should not attempt to impose architectural styles or tastes and should not stifle
innovation. Whilst the Framework does seek to promote and reinforce local distinctiveness,
the surrounding area does not have a strong prevailing architectural character.

19. | therefore find that the proposed development would not cause harm to the character
and appearance of the area. It would comply with the relevant requirements of Policies 3.5
and 7.6 of the London Plan; Saved Policies BE13 and BE19 of the UDP; and the guidance
in the HDAS to achieve a high quality of design in new development that has regard to its
context and maintains or enhances the existing local character and street scene. It would
also be consistent with the requirement of the Framework, which seeks a high standard of
design in all new developments."

Given the Inspectors conclusion on this issue it would now be difficult to sustain a reason
for refusal on design grounds.The proposal is, therefore, considered to relate satisfactorily
to the character and appearance of the locality, the development would be in scale with the
surrounding buildings and the proposal would thus comply with policies BE13 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies, Policies 3.5 and 5.3 of the
London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
dominance (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts advises that all residential
developments and amenity spaces should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that
new development should be designed to mitigate the negative impacts of overbearing and
overshadowing. Furthermore, it explains that 'where a two storey building abuts a property
or its garden, adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible domination'.
Generally, 15m will be the minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a
minimum of 21m overlooking distance should be maintained.

The proposal follows a similar building line to the adjoining property 51 Colham Road and
would be set 1.5 metres from the common boundary. There are no flank windows
proposed and there is only a single secondary window at first floor level in that property.

In relation to 92A Pield Heath Road, there are no habitable rooms from this property facing
the proposed building and the proposal would not be within a 45 degree angle of sight from
habitable rooms on the rear elevation of this property.

It is considered that the development will not result in a material loss of amenity for

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



occupiers of the adjoining flats and is appropriate under Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London intends to adopt the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan. This alteration is in the form of the Housing Standards Policy
Transition Statement and it sets out how the existing policies relating to Housing Standards
in The London Plan should be applied from October 2015. Appendix 1 of the Transition
Statement sets out how the standards stemming from the policy specified in the 2012
Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards.

The Housing Standards Transition Statement requires a 1 person unit to be a minimum of
37 sgm if the flat has a shower room (39 sgm with a bathroom) and for 1 bed 2 person
units the standard is 50 sqm. The proposal involves provision of 3 x studio flats of 38sgm
and 3 x 1 bed flats of 53sgm. The proposed development accords with the standards and
as such would provide the future occupants with an acceptable standard of residential
amenity in accordance with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2015.

Whilst the proposal is compliant with the overall space standards and the standard of
accommodation, in terms of outlook, levels of light etc is generally acceptable, the outlook
for the ground floor one bedroom flat, and in particular from the bedroom and kitchen could
be considered to be limited as the only bedroom window would be a distance of 7m from
the boundary and the only kitchen window has an outlook through a 1.1m gap between the
proposed development wall and the existing wall of 92A Pield Heath Road. This element
formed a reason for refusal on the previous application. On this issue the Inspector
concluded:

"24. The Council's concerns in terms of outlook are restricted to Flat 1. The window in the
bedroom of this flat would look towards the shared boundary with the neighbouring property
on Pield Heath Road. This has a single storey outbuilding at the rear, resulting in a wall
approximately 2 m high on the boundary. The window of the bedroom in Flat 1 would be
located approximately 6.5 m from the boundary wall and, as the rear of the adjoining
commercial buildings is predominantly open above ground floor level, the outlook from this
window would not be excessively constrained.

25. The glossary of terms relating to the Saved Policies in the UDP excludes kitchens with
a floor area under 13 m2 from the definition of habitable rooms. The Council accept that the
kitchen area of Flat 1 is less than 13 m2. The window of the kitchen area would look out
into a long, narrow, space formed by the wall of the proposed new building and an existing,
single storey, extension to the side of 92 Pield Heath Road. Whilst this will result in a
restricted outlook from this window, it does not serve a principal habitable room. | have had
regard to the Council's point that the floor area of Flat 1 would only be slightly above the
minimum floor area required by the Nationally Described Space Standard, however, there
would be adequate outlook from the other habitable rooms of the flat. Taken as a whole, the
proposed flat would not have an unduly poor outlook."

Given the Inspectors conclusion on this issue it would now be difficult to sustain a reason
for refusal on this issue and it is concluded that the application is acceptable in this regard.

In relation to amenity space, the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



Residential Layouts, at Paragraph 4.17, sets out a requirement of 20sg.m for each studio
and one bed flat. The proposal would thus require the provision of a minimum of 120m2 for
the development. Amenity space is provided to the rear of the site, which is considered
usable. Individual balconies of approximately 3sgm for each of the 4 upper floor units are
also provided. The applicants also state that the two ground floor properties will each have
private amenity space fronting onto Colham Road, enclosed with picket fencing. However,
given the lack of privacy, its location fronting a highway and its limited size, it is not
considered that this is 'usable' amenity space. The total area of amenity space for this
development, including balconies at first and second floor levels will thus be some 72sq m,
which is some distance short of the required 120sgm and this also formed a reason for
refusal of the previous application. On this issue the Inspector concluded:

"21. Saved UDP Policy BE23 requires that new development provide sufficient external
amenity space and this is elaborated on in the HDAS which provides guidelines for the
amount of amenity space required for particular types of residential development. In the
case of studio and 1 bedroom flats this is 20m2 per unit. The appellant calculates that
there is 160 m2 of outdoor amenity space. The Council contend that, including the
balconies on the upper floor flats, the amenity areas amount to approximately 72 m2, as
the garden areas for Flats 1 and 2 are adjacent to Colham Road and not private. This
would be well below the 120 m2 guideline. However, even if the Council's figure is the
correct one, the HDAS but does allow for exceptions where the development is for small
non-family housing, in town centres, that is predominantly made up of one bedroom units.

22. Although the appeal site is not located within a town centre, the proposal would consist
of one bedroom and studio flats, which would be described as non-family housing. The
appeal site is also within a short distance of a substantial public open space at Colham
Green Recreation Ground. The Council recognise that this would provide some mitigation
for a reduced level of on-site provision. Whilst | note the Council's point that the open space
at Colham Green Recreation Ground is to the south of Pield Heath Road and would not be
suitable for young children, given that the proposed flats are studio and 1 bedroom units, |
consider that it is highly unlikely that they would be occupied by families with children.

23. The proposal would provide some useable and private outdoor amenity space and,
given the non-family nature of the proposed units and the proximity to a large area of public
open space, | am satisfied that this amounts to sufficiently special circumstances to
warrant a level of amenity space that is below the HDAS guideline figure and that the
development would provide sufficient amenity space to meet the day to day requirements
of the future occupiers."

Given the Inspectors conclusion on this issue it would now be difficult to sustain a reason
for refusal on this issue and it is concluded that the application is acceptable in this regard.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal does not include any provision for on-site parking and on the previous
application, the applicant offered a Unilateral Agreement which restricted the use of land by
prohibiting occupation of the property by anyone holding a parking permit. Members
considered this to be unacceptable and the application was also refused on the basis of
the lack of parking. On this issue the Inspector concluded:

"4. The proposed development does not include any provision for parking for the future
residents. The appeal site is located within a controlled parking zone where parking permits
are required. Pield Heath Road, Colham Green Road and the turning head at the end of
Colham Road adjacent to the appeal site are subject to parking restrictions in the form of

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



double yellow lines. At the time of my visit the available parking spaces in the surrounding
streets were well used as was the short term parking area to the front of the shops
adjacent to the appeal site.

5. The public transport accessibility level (PTAL) is an accepted measure of accessibility in
London. According to the officer's report, the site is located in an area that has moderate
accessibility with a PTAL rating of level 3. Whilst the Council suggest that a PTAL rating of
3 does not lend itself to a car free development, the policies referred to in the reasons for
refusal are silent in this regard and no other evidence has been submitted to indicate why
this is not

acceptable.

6. There are bus stops on Pield Road and Colham Green Road within a very short distance
of the appeal site with frequent services, and whilst there are not a wide range of services
within walking distance, in the group of commercial buildings immediately adjoining the
appeal site there is a general dealers shop and the Council's Statement of Case notes that
a larger retail unit to be occupied by Tesco has planning permission. Work on this was in
progress when | visited the site.

7. On this basis, the future residents would not necessarily be solely dependent on the
private car for their day to day requirements. | note that the Highway Authority had no
objections to the development on highway grounds, subject to future residents not holding
parking permits. However, the Council comment that use of a planning obligation to prevent
future residents from acquiring parking permits has been found unlawful. | am mindful of
the decision in Westminster City Council v SSCLG & Mrs Marilyn Acons [2013] EWHC 690
(Admin). However, whilst the obligation in that case sought to prevent the owner from
applying for a parking permit and therefore did not comply with the strict terms of s106(1),
nonetheless, it is possible to restrict the use of land by prohibiting occupation of the
property by anyone holding a permit.

8. The appellant has submitted with the appeal a signed and dated unilateral obligation
framed in these terms, which also undertakes to make any occupiers aware of the car free
obligation and the need to be compliant with it. However, the obligation contains errors that
would affect the ability to enforce it. In Section 1 'Definitions' the application is defined as an
application for the prior approval of the Council in respect of (a) the transport and highways
impacts of the proposed development; (b) contamination risks on the site; and (c) flooding
risks on the site pursuant to Part J.2 of Class J of the Order. The planning application was
a full planning application and not a prior approval application relating to the exercise of
permitted development rights. The definitions section also incorrectly defines the proposed
development as the change of use of the land to residential, when it comprises operational
development. Additionally, the obligation refers to land edged red on a plan that is not
attached to the obligation.

9. Whilst these are technical errors in the drafting of the obligation, nevertheless they are
fatal flaws which result in the obligation not correctly relating to the proposed development
and, as a consequence, not capable of being enforced should the terms be breached. |
therefore cannot give any weight to the submitted unilateral obligation.

10. The area surrounding the appeal site is subject to parking stress as evidenced by the
fact that it is a controlled parking zone. If car ownership and use was not restricted, the
proposed development would introduce additional cars into this area, which would add
severely to the existing parking stress and result in conditions that were prejudicial to road

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

safety. In the absence of a mechanism to prevent the future occupiers of the development
from using cars, the appeal must fail on this ground.”

The Inspector, in his conclusions clearly accepts that a legal obligation which restricts the
use of land by prohibiting occupation of the property by anyone holding a permit would be
acceptable in principle and only dismissed the appeal on the basis of the fatal flaws in the
submitted obligation which resulted in the obligation not correctly relating to the proposed
development and, as a consequence, not capable of being enforced. Thus a suitably
worded legal agreement would be acceptable and on this basis a refusal on parking
grounds could not be justified.

Urban design, access and security

See Section 7.07.
Disabled access

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London intends to adopt the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan. This alteration is in the form of the Housing Standards Policy
Transition Statement and it sets out how the existing policies relating to Housing Standards
in The London Plan should be applied from October 2015. Appendix 1 of the Transition
Statement sets out how the standards stemming from the policy specified in the 2012
Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards. The issues relating
to disabled access are to be addressed under the Building Regulations.

The building regulations now contains optional elements. The Government has issued
guidance that for those areas where authorities have existing policies on access (like
London) that planning permissions can be granted subject to conditions requiring
compliance with the optional elements of the Building Regulations.

London Plan (March 2015), Policy 3.8(c), requires all new homes to be built to lifetime
homes standards. From October 2015 the Mayor's Housing Standards: Transition Policy
Statement confirms that this should be interpreted as homes should meet building
regulation M4 (2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings' and this is secured by condition.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

No trees will be lost as a result of the development. The site contains no significant
landscape value. The proposal indicates landscaping to the edges of the site. This matter
can be dealt with by condition.

Sustainable waste management

The location of the proposed waste storage is indicated and is acceptable. However, full
details can be the subject of a condition.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

No comments received.
7.20 Planning Obligations

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and on
completion of an agreement under Section 106 to to restrict the use of land by prohibiting
occupation of the property by anyone holding a permit. (See details above).

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

The proposal would attract a CIL Liability of:

CIL £31,015.70
Mayoral CIL £12,144.22

Total CIL £43,159.92.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal seeks planning permission for a three-storey block of flats to provide 3 x
studio units and 3 x 1 bed units. This is the same proposal as considered on appeal in
terms of submitted drawings and supporting material.

The proposal has been assessed against current policies and guidance for new housing
development in terms of the potential effects of the design, scale and site layout on the
character of the surrounding area, the potential impact on the residential amenities of
adjoining and nearby occupiers, and on highways related matters including access,
traffic/pedestrian safety and parking in the vicinity.

Whilst upholding the Council's refusal, the Inspector did not agree with the Council in
respect of reasons for refusal numbers 1, 2 and 3 but upheld the Council's position in
respect of reason for refusal number 4. These are material considerations in determination
of the current application. The Inspector found the draft unilateral agreement submitted with
the appeal to be flawed. However, it is also material that the Inspector was satisfied that if
an appropriate legal agreement could be secured which prevents occupiers from holding a
permit, (as opposed to applying for one) the development would be acceptable in this
regard.

In summary, given the position adopted by the Inspector, which is an important material

consideration, the proposal is considered to relate satisfactorily to the character and
appearance of the locality and would comply with policies BE13, BE15, BE19, BE20 and

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



BE21 of the of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies, Policies 3.5 and
5.3 of the London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and on
completion of an agreement under Section 106 to prevent occupants of the development
and No. 92a Pield Heath Road from holding a car parking permit within the Controlled
Parking Zone.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Cris Lancaster Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



Car Park

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Land forming part of %':sli'!'ﬂ;' EE?VE:SSN

Fer idenfification prmpsesonly: 92 Pield Heath Road Planning Section

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the ; . ’ 5 .

Bopyright, Desinsand Palerts Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 12504/APP/2016/4179 1:1,000

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: :

© Crown copyright and database F“wi H ﬂ |} l NT !\} ) i\“

ights 2016 Ord S ITTILLIIN GO LOIN

2!80;19283 i Central & Sqﬂébe 51 February 2017 LUNDD:“ 4




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 54 AND 56 STAR ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: 1 x 2-bed, detached bungalow with associated parking and amenity space
involving demolition of existing garage block

LBH Ref Nos: 70020/APP/2016/4467

Drawing Nos: SRM/2
Design and Access Statement
SRM/3 'D'
SRM/4 'E'
SRM/5 'D'

Date Plans Received: 13/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 22/12/2016
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a 2-bed, detached bungalow
with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of existing garage block.
The application follows the dismissal of a recent appeal for two x one-bed, semi detached
bungalows with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of the existing
garages. It is considered that the fundamental objection to the erection of a dwelling on
this site has not been addressed. The Inspector raised concerns that the proposed
development by reason of its siting (partly in a rear garden), design, layout, and site
coverage, would result in a cramped development of the site, which is visually
incongruous (given the setting) and would fail to harmonise with the existing local and
historic context of the surrounding area. Given that the current revised proposal is similar
in layout and form, this refusal reason stands. Furthermore concerns are raised in terms
of the quality of living accommodation that the future occupants would enjoy due to the
proximity of the access road to neighbouring garages. The application is therefore
recommended for refusal.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its siting (partly in a rear garden), design, layout,
and site coverage, would result in a cramped development of the site, which is visually
incongruous (given the setting) and would fail to harmonise with the existing local and
historic context of the surrounding area. The principle of intensifying the residential use of
the site to the level proposed, as well as the proposed loss of existing private rear garden
area would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and local
distinctiveness of the residential area as a whole. The proposal is therefore detrimental to
the visual amenity and character of its surroundings and contrary to Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13 and
BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2016) and the Mayor of London's adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016).

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would give rise to a sub-standard unit of accommodation in terms of layout
with the main outlook facing the access road to the adjacent nearby garages, lack of
privacy due to the proximity of the two main windows facing directly onto the access road,
lack of defensible space at the front, and the potential for future occupiers to suffer from
noise nuisance and pollution due to its proximity to the service road of the existing nearby
garages. The proposal is, therefore, contrary to Policies BE13, BE15, BE19, BE21, BE24
and OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.1 (2016) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the North Eastern side of Star Road which lies within the
Developed Area as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012). Star Road runs North from the Uxbridge Road and comprises of semi-
detached and terraced properties.

The application site itself comprises of a longstanding block of 4 garages and the rear
garden area of number 56 Star Road. Access is gained to the application site via the
existing access road between numbers 52 and 54 Star Road.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 1 x 2-bed, detached
bungalow with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of the existing
garage block.

Officer note: It is noted that the Design and Access Statement submitted with this
application pertains to the erection of a pair of semi-detached bungalows which was
dismissed at appeal.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

70020/APP/2014/1808 Land Rear Of 54 And 56 Star Road Hillingdon

2 x 1-bed, semi-detached bungalows with associated parking and amenity space involving
demolition of existing garage block

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



Decision: 23-09-2014 Refused

70020/APP/2015/3066  Land Rear Of 54 And 56 Star Road Hillingdon

Two x one-bed, semi detached bungalows with associated parking and amenity space involving
demolition of existing garages

Decision: 14-10-2015 Refused Appeal: 06-07-2016 Dismissed

Comment on Relevant Planning History

70020/APP/2015/3066 - Two x one-bed, semi detached bungalows with associated parking
and amenity space involving demolition of existing garages was refused for the following
reasons:

1. The proposed development, by reason of its siting (partly in a rear garden), design,
layout, and site coverage, would result in a cramped development of the site, which is
visually incongruous (given the setting) and would fail to harmonise with the existing local
and historic context of the surrounding area. The principle of intensifying the residential use
of the site to the level proposed, as well as the proposed loss of existing private rear
garden area would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and local
distinctiveness of the residential area as a whole. The proposal is therefore detrimental to
the visual amenity and character of its surroundings and contrary to Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19
and H12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan, The Mayor of London's adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (November 2012) and the NPPF (March
2012).

2. The proposed dwellings by reason of their siting, size, scale, bulk, height, proximity to
the side boundaries and design, result in a cramped appearance which is considered
detrimental to the visual amenities, character and appearance of the wider area. The
proposal would therefore represent an overdevelopment of the site, contrary to Policy BE1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13
and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The proposal results in the loss of existing parking provision and has not demonstrated
that sufficient off street parking/manoeuvring/access arrangements would be provided for
the existing and proposed dwellings, and therefore the development is considered to result
in substandard car parking provision to the Council's approved car parking standards,
leading to on-street parking and queuing to the detriment of public and highway safety and
contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

4. In the absence of sufficient improvements to the existing access including drainage,
bollards and speed control measures, the proposal would make inadequate provision for
pedestrian refuge and would therefore prejudice the safety of pedestrians and vehicles
using the highway. As a result it would be contrary to policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5. Having regard to the distance of the proposed refuse storage area to serve the proposed
bungalows, from the adopted highway, the proposal would fail to meet to the Council's
guidelines in terms of the collection of refuse and would therefore prejudice the safety of
pedestrians and vehicles using the highway. As a result it would be contrary to policy AM7
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

6. Having regard to the siting of the proposed communal garden area to the rear of the
window serving the bedroom of bungalow A, the proposal would result in a poor standard of
residential amenity to the occupants of this property who would experience an
unacceptable level of overlooking and loss of privacy in conflict with Policies BE19, BE21
and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

An appeal was subsequently dismissed under reference APP/R5510/W/16/3142884. The
Inspector concluded:

"l consider that the proposal's layout and the presence of communal garden next to the
bedroom window of bungalow A would adversely affect living conditions at that property
due to direct overlooking and a loss of privacy. Furthermore, the occupants of bungalow A
would overlook the communal amenity space. For these reasons, | conclude that the
development would not provide a satisfactory standard of living accommodation for its
occupants. Of the policies referred to by the Council, policy BE24 of the London Borough of
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan ((LBHUDP) referred to by the Council as the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies) is the most relevant, together with
the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement Supplementary Planning Document:
Residential Layouts (HDASRE).

The loss of part of the garden associated with No 56 would be out of character with the
local area. As a consequence, it would create a cramped form of development in an area
characterised by long linear gardens. Whilst, the scheme complies with the minimum

space standards in the Council's HDASRE, | do not consider this outweighs the harm
created by the scheme not reflecting or harmonising with the character of the area."

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



BE13

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.1 (2016) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

6 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 5.1.17 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 6.2.17. One response raising no objection and two in objection

have been received raising the following concerns:

1. This site is not suitable for residential development, would result in the loss of car parking and

would result in a loss of privacy to the rear garden.

2. The only access to this site is by a service road opposite my drive which | have to use to back into
my drive The service road is frequently blocked by the people at No.54 by the van used by their
carpet business and | am frequently at loggerheads with them to get them to move it as it's not their
private drive. Building another property at the rear will only make matters worse. Star Road is

already congested as it is with cars often parked on the pavement.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Ward Councillor: Requests that the application is reported to committee for consideration.

Internal Consultees
Highway Officer:

This application is for the erection of a a 1 bed detached bungalow in Star Road Hillingdon having
demolished existing garages and sheds at the rear of the properties. Both 54 and 56 Star Road have
off -street car parking available from vehicular crossovers. There is an existing block of garages at
the rear of 54 Star Road that has an access from a narrow private road between Nos 52 and 54.
The site has a PTAL value of 2 (poor) which suggests that there will be a strong reliance on private
cars for trip making. The proposal involves demolishing the garage block and erecting a 1 bed
bungalows with 2 car parking spaces with secure covered cycle parking (1 space for each dwelling).
| am concerned that the width of the access road is insufficient to provide access for a fire engine
and | would suggest the LFB are contacted for comment. The LFB Guidance Note GN29 requires
3.1 m between obstacles and this is not met by the proposals. On the basis of the above comments
I have significant concerns over the width of the access road for emergency vehicles and | would like
to see comments from LFB. In other aspects | do not have concerns but | would suggest that the car
parking spaces are of a suitable size, the secure covered cycle parking spaces and the
refuse/recycling facilities are conditioned.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

In order to establish the acceptability of the principle of developing this site for residential
purposes, it is necessary to take into account currently adopted planning policy.

Paragraph 7.29 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) suggests that backland development may be acceptable in principle subject to being
in accordance with all other policies, although Policy H12 does resist proposals for
tandem/backland development which may cause undue disturbance or loss of privacy.

The London Plan (2016) provides guidance on how applications for development on garden
land should be treated within the London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back
gardens can contribute to the objectives of a significant number of London Plan policies
and these matters should be taken into account when considering the principle of such
developments. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan supports development plan-led presumptions
against development on back gardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence
base.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, 2016 also provides further
guidance on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as regards garden
development. Paragraph 1.2.44 advises that when considering proposals which involve the
loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the degree to which gardens contribute to a
communities' sense of place and quality of life (Policy 3.5), especially in outer London
where gardens are often a key component of an area's character (Policies 2.6 and 2.7).
The contribution gardens make towards biodiversity also needs to be considered (Policies
7.18 and 7.19) as does their role in mitigating flood risk (Policies 5.12 and 5.13). Gardens
can also address the effects of climate change (Policies 5.9 - 5.11).

The NPPF (March 2012) at paragraph 53, advises that LPAs 'should consider the case for
setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example
where development would cause harm to the local area.’

The Council has adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012). Policy BE1 advises that new development, in addition to achieving a high quality of

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

design, should enhance the local distinctiveness of the area, contribute to community
cohesion and sense of place and make a positive contribution to the local area in terms of
layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of surrounding land and
buildings, particularly residential properties. Specifically, the policy advises that
development should not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green
spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase flood risk.

Thus whilst taking into account site circumstances, there has been a general strengthening
of the presumption against residential development within rear gardens at national,
strategic and local level.

While there is in general no objection to the principle of an intensification of use on existing
residential sites it is considered that in this instance the loss of substantial proportion of
back gardens in this location would be detrimental to the local and historical context of the
area. The proposed redevelopment would have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the general area, particularly in this location, which is characterised by pairs
of semi-detached and small terraces of properties with long rear gardens giving a sense of
spaciousness to the setting. The proposal would give the impression of having been
squeezed into a limited space and has little or no sense of space about it, given the very
limited depth of the proposed amenity space and frontage and the proximity of the
proposed development to the boundaries of the site. Thus, when balanced against the
limited contribution the development would make toward achieving housing targets in the
borough it is considered that the principle of the proposed backland residential
development is contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and H12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan,
guidance within The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016) and
the NPPF (March 2012).

Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) advises that Boroughs should ensure that
development proposals maximise housing output having regard to local context, design
principles, density guidance in Table 3.2 and public transport accessibility. Table 3.2
establishes a density matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at
different locations.

The site is located within a suburban fringe location and has a Public Transport
Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2. Taking these parameters into account, the matrix
recommends a density of 35-65 units per hectare. This proposal would result in a density
of 50 units per hectare.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
'development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning
Authority will seek to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or
improves the amenity and character of the area'. Paragraph 4.14 of the Residential Layouts
HDAS SPD specifies that developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and
private garden space conveniently located in relation to the property or properties it serves.
It should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of the dwelling and character
of the area. Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new
development should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the
development is best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of
surrounding buildings.

The previously refused application raised concerns about the single storey nature of the
development being out of keeping with the locality. The current proposal is similar in scale
to that previously refused. However the Inspector stated:

"9. Star Road is characterised by two storey detached, semi-detached and terraced
dwellings fronting the highway. There are intermittent examples of bungalows, which create
a varied street scene. Long rear gardens serving the rows of terraces lie either side of the
vehicular access to the site. Nearby garages are sited around the access to the rear. They
are of a mixed style, finish and size.

10. The dwellings would be sited in a similar location to the garage block, albeit drawn
slightly inwards either side and closer to the access. The dwellings would be higher and of
a different appearance to the existing garage. However the proposal would not be readily
visible from Star Lane due to the terraces and the boundary treatments either side of the
access. Their role within the Star Road street scene would therefore be limited.

11. Whilst the Council are concerned with the introduction of bungalows, | consider they
would reflect the general mixture of dwellings found on Star Road."

The Inspector did however raise concerns in relation to the site layout and pattern of
development. He stated:

"11. The proposed development would be set back and detached from the Star Road.
Accordingly, it would be at odds with the character of Star Road, where properties tend to
relate more closely to the road.

12. Moreover, whilst, the communal garden would retain a garden use, the proposal would
still sub-divide the garden of No 56. As a result of roughly halving the garden of No 56, it
would be smaller than the garden of no 54, which is already uncharacteristically small due
to the garages on the appeal site. The loss of part of the garden associated with No 56
would be out of character with the local area. As a consequence, it would create a
cramped form of development in an area characterised by long linear gardens. Whilst, the
scheme complies with the minimum space standards in the Council's HDASRE, | do not
consider this outweighs the harm created by the scheme not reflecting or harmonising with
the character of the area.

15. For these reasons, | conclude that the development would harm the character and

appearance of the area. Consequently, there would be conflict with Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies, Policies BE13 and BE19 of the LBHUDP

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



along with Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan. These together seek to secure high
quality design that positively contributes to the local area and enhances local
distinctiveness. Furthermore, for the same reasons, | conclude the development would
conflict with the HDASRE and The Mayor of London's Supplementary Planning Guidance -
Housing."

Thus, it is considered that the current proposal does not overcome the Inspector's
fundamental objection to the erection of a new dwelling in this backland location which
would be at odds with the established layout and character of the locality and would result
in the loss of the long linear garden to number 56. The proposed development therefore, by
reason of its siting (partly in a rear garden), design, layout, and site coverage, would result
in a cramped development of the site, which is visually incongruous (given the setting) and
would fail to harmonise with the existing local and historic context of the surrounding area.
The proposal is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity and character of its
surroundings and contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and H12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan
(2016).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Polices (November 2012) give advice that buildings should be laid out so that adequate
daylight and sunlight can penetrate into and between them, and the amenities of existing
houses are safeguarded.

Policies BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part Two) stress the importance of
new buildings and extensions providing adequate amount of external amenity space, that
not only protects the amenity of the occupants of the proposed development, but also of
those of the surrounding buildings, as well as protecting both parties privacy.

The Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) specifies in paragraph
4.9 that where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, a minimum
acceptable distance of 15 m should be maintained, so as to overcome possible over-
domination, overbearing and overshadowing. Paragraph 4.11 of the HDAS SPD specifies
that the Council's 45 degree principle will be applied and is designed to ensure that
adequate daylight and sunlight is enjoyed in new and existing dwellings. The principle
involves drawing a line from the mid-point of an existing/new window that is potentially
affected by a new dwelling at an angle of 45 degrees towards the new building. Paragraph
4.12 of the HDAS SPD specifies that new residential development should be designed so
as to ensure adequate privacy for its occupants and that of the adjoining residential
property. It gives advice that the distance should not be less than 21 m between facing
habitable room windows.

The proposed building is oriented to the front of the site facing the access road and to the
rear, towards the rear gardens of properties in Star Road. The proposal would be sited at
least 15m from the main rear elevations of adjoining properties thereby complying with the
guidance contained within HDAS: Residential Layouts. No first floor windows are proposed
which would ensure that the proposed dwelling would not result in a loss of privacy to
occupants of nearby dwellings. Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development
would not constitute an un-neighbourly form of development.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. A two bedroom (3 person)
dwelling is required to provide an internal floor area of 61 square metres which, at an
internal floor area of 63 square metres, the proposal complies with.

The proposed building is located within the entrance of the access driveway to garages in
both Star Road and Heath Road. Thus, there would be on average 15 residents using the
garages on a daily basis. This could potentially add up to over 30 vehicle movements a day
which would pass directly in front of the front windows of the proposed bungalow causing
unacceptable noise, smell, emissions of pollutants and general disturbance to future
occupiers which are likely to result in a sub-standard quality of living accommodation.

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that new residential
buildings should 'provide external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity
of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings'. The Council's guidance
HDAS Residential Layouts (2008) requires a 2 bedroom property to provide 60 square
metres. The submitted plans indicate that the retained dwellings at numbers 54 and 56
would retain over 60 square metres of garden space and the proposed dwelling would
achieve 67 square metres thereby complying with the requirements of the Council's
guidance HDAS Residential Layouts (2008).
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The site has a PTAL value of 2 (poor) which suggests that there will be a strong reliance on
private cars for trip making. The submitted plans confirm that 2 parking spaces would be
provided within the application site. Secure cycle storage is also shown on the submitted
plans.

Concerns have been raised by the highways officer in respect of the width of the access
road and its potential future use by the fire service. This concern was previously raised in
respect of the refused application. However the Inspector concluded in the recent appeal:

"16. Access to the garages is via a shared unmade track from Star Road, routed between
52 and 54 Star Road. It provides access to a number of detached garages. The access is
relatively narrow, but wide enough for a single vehicle. It widens adjacent to the site. Either
side of the access between Star Road and the garage is a brick boundary wall and timber
fence, respectively providing a solid boundary to the gardens of Nos 52 and 54.

17. Refuse storage is proposed in front of each dwelling. This is 31 and 38 metres

respectively away from Star Road. This exceeds the distance in paragraph 4.41 of the
HDASRE, which seeks facilities that are easy and safely accessed and not further than 23

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



metres from the highway.

18. The appellant cites an example on Heath Road, in which refuse requirements are
minimised by the use of a 'food grinder' and rubbish bags are taken out of wheelie bins and
placed by the kerb on collection day.

19. Adopting the same approach in this case would ensure wheelie bins are not transferred
along the access, which could create obstacles and conflicts for pedestrians and vehicles
seeking to use the access at its narrowest point. However, occupants of either bungalow
would still be required to transfer their rubbish over a significant distance. Whilst this is not
an ideal arrangement,given the use of the access, in this instance | am not persuaded that
harm to highway and pedestrian safety would occur as a result of the distance alone.

20. Concerns have been raised that if the proposal was allowed it would displace vehicles
onto the highway. The garage block is set back slightly from the access and provides 3
single spaces and 1 double space. If the appeal was allowed, a single space for each
house would be formed. Whilst there is dispute about the size of the proposed parking
spaces, it is agreed that this is an acceptable level of provision. The spaces are shown
tight up to the boundary with No. 58, but there would be enough room for 2 vehicles to park
behind bungalow B without adversely hindering the passage of pedestrians.

21. | accept that manoeuvring would be required to enable vehicles to enter and leave each
parking space, due to the uneven nature of the access and landscaping abutting the
access. A low provision of lighting would also make matters more difficult during evening
hours. However the effects would not be severe and would not affect the wider highway
network.

22. Occupants of the dwellings would use the shared relatively narrow access. The
proposed improvements would enhance the access's safety. Extending the paviors would
assist with the smooth movement of traffic, however in the absence of evidence from the
Council demonstrating why further improvements are necessary, | consider the access
would not harm safety of vehicular or pedestrian traffic.

23. For these reasons, | conclude that the development would not compromise the safety
of vehicular and pedestrian traffic. Although the proposal is contrary to HDASRE, in this
instance, | do not consider harm would arise as a consequence. Accordingly, the proposal
complies with Policy AM7 of the LBHUDP, which seeks to ensure highway safety."

Given that the current proposal seeks a reduction in the number of units from 2 x 1
bedroom bungalows to 1 x 2 bedroom bungalow, and the recent comments of the Appeal
Inspector which is a strong material consideration, subject to a condition to retain the car
parking and secure cycle storage, it is considered that a refusal on parking or highway
safety grounds could not be justified.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

The Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document, HDAS: Residential Layouts
sets out, in Chapter 4, the site specific and general design guidance for new residential
development. These issues have been considered elsewhere in this report, in terms of
their effect on the amenity and character of the surrounding residential area and the
potential impacts on the neighbouring occupiers.

7.12 Disabled access

No issues raised.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires the retention of landscape features of merit and new landscaping and planting
where possible. No trees would be lost due to the proposal. Should the application be
considered acceptable in all other respects, a condition requiring landscaping could be
imposed.

Sustainable waste management

Refuse collection arrangements are shown to be located to the side of the proposed
bungalow. The distance to the highway in Star Road would be approximately 30m. The
comments of the Inspector in respect of refuse collection are cited above in Section 7.
where he considers the arrangements to be acceptable.

Given the comments of the Inspector, if the application were considered acceptable in all
other respects, it is considered that it would be reasonable to impose a condition to secure
the refuse storage.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

No issues raised.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments are addressed in the report above.
Planning obligations

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 1 x 2-bed, detached
bungalow with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition of existing
garage block. The application follows the dismissal of a recent appeal for two x one-bed,
semi detached bungalows with associated parking and amenity space involving demolition
of the existing garages. It is considered that the fundamental objection to the erection of a
dwelling on this site has not been addressed. The Inspector raised concerns that the
proposed development by reason of its siting (partly in a rear garden), design, layout, and
site coverage, would result in a cramped development of the site, which is visually
incongruous (given the setting) and would fail to harmonise with the existing local and

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



historic context of the surrounding area. Given that the current revised proposal is similar in
layout and form, this refusal reason stands. Furthermore concerns are raised in terms of
the quality of living accommodation that the future occupants would enjoy due to the
proximity of the access road to neighbouring garages. The application is therefore
recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land at rear of
54 & 56 Star Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
70020/APP/2016/4467 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Soplfye 63 February 2017

THILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address EURO GARAGES HEATHROW NORTH SHEPISTON LANE HAYES
Development: Single storey side extension and chiller unit to rear

LBH Ref Nos: 17981/APP/2016/3287

Drawing Nos: pin041.02.A1.B Rev. C
Planning Statement
pln041.01.AZ
CS/090816-CAP-HGN-00-DR-C-0002 Rev. PO1
CS/090816-CAP-HGN-00-DR-C-0001 Rev. PO1

Date Plans Received: 31/08/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 25/10/2016
Date Application Valid: 15/09/2016 15/09/2016

DEFERRED ON 24th November 2016 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION .

This application was deferred at the committee of the 24th November 2016 to enable officers to
reconsult on the change to the red line site plan and for the Highway Officer to consider the
implications for the servicing of the site.

The applicant has submitted two additional plans to show vehicle tracking,which clearly indicate
that the proposal would not impact unduly on the servicing of the site. The Highway Officer has
commented as follows on these plans:

"The auto tracks are acceptable. There are no alterations to the existing accesses, lorries will
enter and leave the site as at present. Within the site, with the proposed extension, the tracking
diagrams show lorries can manoeuvre satisfactorily."

1. SUMMARY

The proposal involves the erection of a single storey side extension to a petrol filling
station in order to enhance its retail offer and ancillary customer facilities. The proposal
includes the installation of chiller units to the rear of the building. No additional uses are
introduced.

The site is within the Green Belt. The development is considered not to be a
disproportionate addition over and above the size of the original building and does not
materially reduce the openness of the Green Belt or harm its visual amenities. No other
harm arises from the development and it is recommended that planning permission be
granted.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 CcOom4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be retained in complete accordance with the
details shown on the submitted plans, numbers pin041.02.A1.B, CS/090816-CAP-HGN-
00-DR-C-0002 Rev. PO1 and CS/090816-CAP-HGN-00-DR-C-0001 Rev. PO1.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

2 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Within three months of the date of this decision, a landscape scheme shall be submitted
to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.b Hard Surfacing Materials

2.c Pedestrian link to the relocated ATM

2.d External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13 and BE38
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions. None took place in this case

However, the Council considers that the issues are straightforward and no negotiation
was required.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site lies on the southern side of Shepiston Lane opposite Cherry Lane Cemetery and
just to the North of the M4 motorway and comprises a petrol filling station and ancillary
facilities. The site is within the Green Belt.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the erection of a single storey side flat roofed extension and chiller
unit to the rear. The existing ATM will be relocated to the front of the new building. It was
noted from the site visit that the development is currently under construction. The existing
building is 336 sgqm and constructed in brick facing panels.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



The extension to the shop floor will be 109 sgm resulting in an enlarged building of 445 sqm
together with a chiller unit to be located to the rear. The purpose of the extension is to
improve the customer facilities and the use of the extended building will remain ancillary to
the use of the site as a petrol filling station.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

17981/ADV/2016/46 Euro Garages Heathrow North Shepiston Lane Hayes
Installation of 1 internally illuminated ATM sign

Decision: 20-07-2016  Approved

17981/APP/2006/1405 Heathrow North Service Station Shepiston Lane Hayes

ERECTION OF PETROL SERVICE STATION COMPRISING SALES BUILDING, 6 ISLAND
FORECOURTS WITH CANOPY OVER, AUTOMATIC CAR WASH AND PLANT ROOM, 2 JET
WASHES, 2 VACUUM MACHINES, LIQUID PETROLEUM GAS (LPG) STORGE COMPOUND
AND CLOSURE OF ONE EXISTING AND WIDENING OF REMAINING VEHICULAR
CROSSOVER.

Decision: 04-07-2007  Approved

17981/APP/2016/1404 Euro Garages Heathrow North Shepiston Lane Hayes

Installation of ATM (Restrospective)

Decision: 20-07-2016  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History
The filling station was granted planning permission in 2006. It has not been subject to any
significant extension since that time. (Reference No. 17981/APP/2006/1405)

Planning permission was granted in 2016 for installation of an ATM (retrospective).
(Reference No. 17981/APP/2016/1404)

A concurrent application for an illuminated advertisement for the ATM received consent in
2016 (Reference No. 17981/ADV/2016/46).

The ATM is sited just to the left of the main pedestrian access to the current shop and this
will be relocated to the front of the extension as part of the current proposals.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The site is within the Green Belt. The issues associated with this designation are
discussed elsewhere in the report.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

Part 2 Policies:
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iif) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development
OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning

Document, adopted January 2010
LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

1 adjoining neighbour (The Premier Inn) was consulted via letter dated 19/09/2016 and a site notice
was displayed on 23/09/2016.

No comments or objections were received.

Heathrow Aerodrome Safeguarding: No comments received.

Internal Consultees
Trees and Landscape Officer:

This site has a large apron of concrete hard-standing which accommodates covered petrol pumps,
a shop, ancillary structures and space for parking and circulation. There is a swale with soft
landscape to the West of the main area and soft landscape including trees, immediately to the East
of the site. Views from the motorway, to the South, are partly obscured by an earth bund which has
a few scattered trees on it.

If the application is recommended for approval and the special circumstances prevail, landscape

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



conditions should be imposed to reinforce the existing (weak) landscape structure to the site edges.
This should include new tree/woodland planting.

Highways:

No objections but notes that the submitted block plan indicates a footpath to the extension but the
plans do not.

Officers comment: Clearly pedestrian access to the relocated ATM will be required. The applicant's
attention has been alerted to the discrepancy and an amended plan has now been submitted
showing the buildings existing raised pedestrian footpath extended around the proposed addition.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of extending existing buildings in the Green Belt is acceptable providing the
extensions do not result in a disproportionate increase over the original building and subject
to their impact on the openness of the Green Belt and its visual amenities.

Para 89 of the NPPF states that the extension or alteration of a building would not be
considered inappropriate development provided that it does not result in a disproportionate
increase in the size of the building. If a proposal is considered to be inappropriate it is
necessary to consider whether very special circumstances exist to justify the development.

These issues are discussed in Section 7.05.

The applicant has submitted a supporting statement to justify the proposals. In this the
issue of retail impact is discussed. The document states:

"4.1 The Proposed Development comprises the extension of the shop within an
established existing petrol station and as such it is considered the principle of this form of
development is established in this location.

4.2 The proposed development will enhance the current offer with associated economic
benefits in terms of jobs creation and increased spend locally. The redevelopment will
include a larger convenience offer together with Starbucks counter within the main sales
building, as existing. These elements are inextricably linked and form part of the modern
petrol station offer.

4.3 The forecourt and sales building are used in conjunction, principally by the motoring
public, relying largely on the interception of pass-by trade, but also in this locality by local
motorists. Typically, in excess of 90% of customer visits to sites of this nature are
undertaken for the purpose of fuel, either exclusively or in conjunction with the use of other
site facilities.

4.4 The Proposed Development will be used by motorists using the highway network as
well as local motorists seeking a modern and efficient facility within an easy reach of their
home or workplace. Based on the nature and operation of such facilities, the proposal will
not undermine the vitality and viability of any existing identified centre, as trade will be
drawn from a wide geographical area with, to a lesser extent, local concentration in the
immediate locality. As such, the Proposed Development is unlikely to result in any
significant increase in the number and length of car journeys to the site at present, due to
the combined use of forecourt and sales buildings.

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

4.5 In light of the above, we consider that the operation and trading characteristics of the
Proposed Development will be entirely acceptable. Further, on the basis that the use is
established on the site it should be considered acceptable in principle."

In this regard, the proposed use is considered to be ancillary to the sites use as a petrol
station. Whilst there will be some journeys where the primary purpose will be to use the
shop, these are likely to be a relatively low in number and unlikely to have any significant or
harmful impact on local shopping facilities or town centres.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

No issues arise
Impact on the green belt

The site within the Metropolitan Green Belt as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Paragraphs 79-92 of the NPPF give clear policy guidance on the functions the Green Belt
performs, its key characteristics, acceptable uses and how its boundaries should be
altered. Paragraph 89 of the NPPF states, inter-alia, that the extension or alteration of a
building is not inappropriate provided that it does not result disproportionate additions over
and above the size of the original building. If a proposal is deemed to be inappropriate it is
necessary to consider whether any very special circumstances exist to justify the
development.

Policy 7.16 of the London Plan states that the Mayor supports the current extent of
London's Green Belt and, inter-alia, its protection from inappropriate development. The
strongest protection should be given to London's Green Belt, in accordance with national
guidance.

Policy EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that the Council will seek to maintain the current extent, hierarchy and strategic
functions of the Green Belt. Any proposals for development in the Green Belt will be
assessed against national and London Plan policies.

Policy OL4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two states that:

The local planning authority will only permit the replacement or extension of buildings within
the green belt if:

(i) the development would not result in any disproportionate change in the bulk and
character of the original building;

(i) the development would not significantly increase the built up appearance of the site;

(iii) having regard to the character of the surrounding area the development would not injure
the visual amenities of the green belt by reason of siting, materials, design, traffic or
activities generated.

The essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.
Therefore the provision of new buildings in the Green Belt is inappropriate except in very
special circumstances. These can include limited infilling, extending or partial
redevelopment of previously developed sites. The extension of an existing building would
not be considered inappropriate provided that it does not result in a disproportionate

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

711

increase in the bulk and character of the original building, does not significantly increase
the built up appearance of the site and does not injure the visual amenities of the Green
Belt.

The existing building is approximately 336 sqm and the extension will add 109 sgm or just
under 30% additional floorspace. The proposed extension is small in scale in comparison
with the existing commercial operation. From most public viewpoints it sits behind the
visually dominant pump canopy. From the side and rear is well screened by the existing
shop and mature landscaping along Shepiston Lane. It is functionally designed to fit in with
the character and appearance of the existing building and will be relatively inconspicuous in
its setting. This is already a busy commercial site and the proposal will have little effect on
either openness or character and appearance.

It is generally well-screened from public view and the condition to secure improved
landscaping recommended by the Trees and Landscape Officer would supplement this.
The development is thus, not considered to be a disproportionate addition over and above
the size of the original building and does not materially reduce the openness of the Green
Belt or harm its visual amenities. As it is considered that the development is appropriate
there is no need to consider very special circumstances.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposal is a small addition to the building which does not spread the built form beyond
the existing developed area of the site. It has very low visual impact when viewed from
outside of the site. From most public viewpoints the existing building and large canopy over
the pumps is likely to absorb the impact of this subordinate extension.

Impact on neighbours

There are no residential neighbours. There is a hotel to the West, the M4 motorway to the
South, open land to the East and a cemetery to the North. The extension and chiller unit are
considered to have a low visual impact and as there are no dwellings in close proximity no
adverse impact on residential neighbours will arise.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two considers traffic generation of new
development particularly with regard to highway and pedestrian safety. The extension is
part of the overall complex of petrol filling station and facilities. There is a substantial area
of off-street parking and the use is unlikely to have any material impact on local traffic. In
terms of pedestrian safety, the extension is within a part of the site associated with
pedestrian activity. The extension is accessed via the shop which has level access and
which allows for use by people with disabilities. No adverse traffic or pedestrian safety
issues arise and the development is considered to comply with policy AM7.

Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two states the need for all development to
comply with the Council's adopted parking standards. The extension is within the body of
the site which includes extensive off-street parking. The proposal is not considered to
require additional car parking. No adverse issues arise and the proposal is considered to
comply with Policy AM14.

Urban design, access and security

The extension is located adjoining the existing main building on the site. It is a simple brick-
panel clad structure with a flat roof. The existing main building is a modern pitched-roofed
structure and the proposed cladding is the same material. Its size is limited in relation to

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



7.12

7.13

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

the overall scale of development on site and thus its visual impact is considered to be low.
The issues of access and security have been considered in other parts of this report.
Disabled access

There is level access to extension via the main shop which is designed to be accessible to
wheelchair users. The extension is accessed internally and will be level. A condition is
recommended which seeks details of pedestrian access to the relocated ATM. In
determining these details, access for people with disabilities will be part of the
consideration.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

No trees are affected by the proposal. The Trees and Landscape Officer recommends a
condition to secure additional planting to reduce the visual impact.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

No consultation responses were received.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

This is a retrospective application.

Since the end of August 2015 applications which are for development which was not
authorised need to be assessed as to whether the unauthorised development was
intentional. If so, then this is a material planning consideration. In this case officers have no
indication that this was an intentional breach of planning control.

In the event of refusal enforcement action would need to be considered.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal is a retrospective application for installation for an extension and a chiller unit
to the rear. The site is within the Green Belt. The development is considered not to be a
disproportionate addition over and above the size of the original building and does not
materially reduce the openness of the Green Belt or harm its visual amenities. No other

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



harm arises from the development and it is recommended that planning permission be
granted.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Meghiji Hirani Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Euro Garages
Heathrow North
Shepiston Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
17981/APP/2016/3287 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sowtiye g0 February 2017

TYILLINGDON
LONDON




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 17 MAYLANDS DRIVE UXBRIDGE

Development: Erection of boundary fence, single storey outbuilding for use as storage and
playspace and stepped access to rear garden

LBH Ref Nos: 65665/APP/2016/3230

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250)
Proposed Side Elevation
Supporting Photographs
36/P/1A

Date Plans Received: 25/08/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 04/01/2017
Date Application Valid: 25/08/2016

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a detached four bedroom dwelling, one of six arranged
around the turning head of a residential close in north Uxbridge. The area is characterised
by mainly modern detached and semi-detached houses with garages. The building is not
listed, nor located within a conservation area. However, the site is located within the North
Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character.

Nos. 17 and 19 Maylands Drive originally formed a pair of similarly designed detached
dwellings with the subject property set marginally in front of No. 19. The pair of dwellings
are located on the northern side of the turning head with No. 19 on a slightly elevated
position.

No. 21 Maylands Drive, the property on the left side of the pair of detached dwellings
comprising Nos. 21 and 32 facing the turning head, has been extended two storeys to the
side and rear.

The front and rear elevations of the application property were originally aligned 4 metres
behind the main front and rear elevations of No.15 Maylands Drive which is situated closer
to the public highway. The ground level at this neighbouring property ranges from 0.5-1m
lower than ground level at No. 17.

The application property has a large rear garden (some 10 metres x 30 metres). The rear

garden had contained two unauthorised outbuildings and a raised platform which have
been completely demolished and the resultant debris removed from the site.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal consists of the erection of boundary fence, single storey outbuilding for use
as storage and playspace and stepped access to rear garden.

The single storey outbuilding would measure 7.5m x 4m with a height of 2.5m.

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



The steps would measure a maximum height of 0.65m and maximum depth of 2.4m.

The boundary fence would comprise of the installation of 4 fence panels measuring a
height of 1.8m from ground level at No. 17 Maylands Drive.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
65665/APP/2013/1348 17 Maylands Drive Uxbridge

Conversion of garage to habitable use, single storey detached outbuilding to rear for use as a
motorbike store/ workshop, alterations to rear patio and alterations to elevations (Part
Retrospective)

Decision Date: 12-09-2013 Refused Appeal:
65665/APP/2013/1349 17 Maylands Drive Uxbridge

Single storey detached outbuilding to rear for use as a gym and store (Retrospective)

Decision Date: 13-08-2013 Refused Appeal:
65665/APP/2016/468 17 Maylands Drive Uxbridge

Erection of part two storey, part single storey side and rear extension; erection of single storey
front porch extension; and installation of one side rooflight.

Decision Date: 19-04-2016 Refused Appeal:27-SEP-16  Dismissed
65665/APP/2016/821 17 Maylands Drive Uxbridge

Erection of part two storey, part single storey rear extension and single storey side extension;
single storey front porch extension; and installation of one rooflight

Decision Date: 19-04-2016 Approved Appeal:
65665/APP/2016/822 17 Maylands Drive Uxbridge

Erection of single storey rear and side extension; single storey front porch extension; and
installation of one rooflight

Decision Date: 19-04-2016 Approved Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

Planning permission was granted for the erection of a part two storey, part single storey
rear extension and single storey side extension, single storey front porch extension and
installation of one rooflight (Ref. 65665/APP/2016/821) in April 2016.

Since then, all unauthorised development on the site has been regularised in accordance
with this consent.

This application seeks external steps for access from the approved and built rear extension
to the garden, the construction of a new outbuilding, and the erection of a boundary fence.

In 2013, planning permission ref. 65665/APP/2013/1349 for a 'single storey detached
outbuilding to rear for use as a gym and store (Retrospective)' was sought at this site and
was refused.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

7 neighbouring properties were consulted the 25th October 2016 and a site notice erected
the 27th October 2016. The statutory consultation period expired on the 24th November
2016. 2 objections have been received which raise the following summarised concerns:

1. Previous outbuilding was used for habitation. Therefore, this may also be used for
habitation.

2. The proposed outbuilding has a footprint which is substantially larger than that previously
built (now demolished), which was refused retrospective permission under
65665/APP/2013/1349, and subject to enforcement action. At 40 square metres, it is
significantly in excess of the maximum 30 square metres referenced in the decision report
for that refusal, as being the largest that might be reasonably required for purposes
ancillary to the residential use of the house.

3. The effective height of the outbuilding will be much greater than 2500mm, due to the fact
that the originally sloping garden has been raised substantially and levelled.

4. The large size will result in a visual impact out of keeping with a garden building, and
have a detrimental effect on the amenity of no. 19 and no. 15. Although the plans state the
construction will be in wood, this could take many forms, from a simple uninsulated 'garden
shed' style, to a much more substantial construction with insulation to a standard suitable
for habitation.

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:
No objection.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.14 (2015) Existing Housing - Efficient use of stock
LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

Planning permission was refused in August 2013 for a single storey detached outbuilding to
rear for use as a gym and store (Ref: 65665/APP/2013/1349). It was refused for the
following reasons:

1. The proposal is for a detached structure which it is considered capable of independent
occupation from the main dwelling and is thus tantamount to a separate dwelling in a
position where such a dwelling would not be accepted due to increased noise and
disturbance impacting on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, a lack of amenity space
for future occupiers, overlooking between the main dwelling and the outbuilding, it is
therefore contrary to policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 adopted in November
2012 and policies OE1, BE19, BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the Hillingdon Design and
Accessibility Statement - Residential Extensions.

2. The outbuilding which is the subject of this application, when considered in conjunction
with other works carried out on the site (and clearly shown on the proposed plans) results
in a significant increase in the built up appearance of this site and loss of amenity to the
occupiers of number 17 and number 19. The development is therefore contrary to policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 adopted in November 2012 and policies BE20,
BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (November 2012).

3. The outbuilding which is the subject of this application, when considered in conjunction
with other works carried out on the site (and clearly shown on the proposed plans) is
considered to result in a development which fails to harmonise with the design features
and architectural style predominant in the area. The development therefore detracts from
the appearance and quality of the North Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character and is
contrary to Policy BE5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012).

The proposed outbuilding does not include a W/C or any internal partitioning, which formed
part of the earlier scheme. It is therefore considered that, subject to a condition restricting
the use of the building, the proposal would not be considered to be capable of providing self
contained living. Therefore, the proposal has overcome the first reason for refusal above.

The proposed outbuilding is smaller than that previously refused (although not significantly
smaller). However, all of the other outbuildings that were previously on the site have been
removed and the extensions to the main building have been reduced in size. As such, the
cumulative impact on neighbours and the visual amenity of the area is much less than
when the earlier application was assessed.

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



The outbuilding would have a width of 7.5m, a depth of 4m, and a height of 2.5m. It would
be positioned approximately 25m from the rear elevation of No. 19, and 26m from No. 15.
The neighbouring properties to the rear are much further back. In addition, the outbuilding is
set in from the boundaries of the site by at least 1m, which also reduces its impact on
neighbours, and is in compliance with the 0.5m separation requirement stipulated in the
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Extensions. Furthermore,
the proposed height of 2.5m is lower than the maximum height stipulated in the SPD.
Overall, given its scale and separation from neighbouring properties, the proposed
outbuilding is not considered to result in loss of privacy, outlook, daylight, or a detrimental
sense of enclosure to neighbouring properties.

In terms of impact on the character and appearance of the area, it is important to consider
the context of the proposal in relation to the size of the existing garden. The rear garden
measures 260sgm and the proposal would have a footprint of 30sgm. Therefore, the
outbuilding would occupy less than 12% of the rear garden. In addition, the outbuilding
would be situated approximately 21m from the rear wall of the house. Given the outbuilding
would occupy a small proportion of the overall garden and as there are examples of large
outbuildings in the area, the scale and design of the proposal is not considered to harm the
visual amenity of the North Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character.

The proposed steps/small terrace would measure a maximum depth of 2.4m, and
maximum height of 0.65m. The top step extends across the entire width of the property.
Due to ground level differences there is the potential for overlooking of No. 15. However, as
it would be 0.6m in depth, it is not particularly usable for sitting out or recreational
purposes. It would realistically be used for functional purposes to enable access to the
garden. As such, in this instance, the proposed patio is not considered to result in loss of
privacy to No. 15. The existing boundary fence is considered to safeguard the privacy of
No. 19. As such, the steps are considered acceptable in design, and not considered to
harm the residential amenity of neighbouring properties.

With regards to the boundary fence, this element of the proposal seeks to install 4 fence
panels. It is understood that the posts are already in place. The fence panels would
measure 1.8m in height from ground level at the application property, but, would measure
up to approximately 2.8m in height from ground level at No. 15. This neighbour does have
windows that face the location of the fence. However, all, but, one, serve non habitable
rooms. The window that serves the habitable room is a secondary window to a rear living
area that also benefits from daylight/outlook from openings on the rear elevation of the
property. As such, the impact from these fence panels are not considered to justify a
reason for refusal. The fencing proposed is not considered unreasonable in its design and
would be of a relatively standard residential appearance. Overall, the fence is considered to
be acceptable in terms of its impact on neighbouring properties and the visual amenity of
the area.

To conclude, the development is considered to be satisfactory in design and amenity

terms, in accordance with local, regional, and national planning policies and is
recommended for approval.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the
details shown on the submitted plans, 36/P/1A and Proposed Side Elevation.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 NONSC Fencing Completion

Prior to implementation of the steps hereby approved, the fencing shall be implemented
and completed in accordance with the plans set out in condition 2.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties, in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012).

4 NONSC Ancillary residential use

The outbuilding hereby approved shall only be used for the purpose(s) stated on the
application form and approved drawings and shall not be used for purposes such as a
living room, bedroom, kitchen, as a separate unit of accommodation or for any business
purposes.

REASON

To avoid any future fragmentation of the curtilage or the creation of a separate residential
or business use, so as to protect the amenity of adjoining residential properties in
accordance with Policy BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 NONSC Siting

Notwithstanding the approved plans, the proposed outbuilding hereby approved shall not
measure more than 7.5m in width, 4m in depth, and 2.5m in height. Its footprint shall be no
greater than 30sgm and it shall be sited no closer than 20m from the rear wall of the main
dwellinghouse.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of adjoining properties, in accordance with policies BE20 and
BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3 You are advised that there are discrepancies in the site layout plan provided.
Condition 5 would ensure appropriate siting of the outbuilding as to safeguard the
amenity of neighbours and the visual amenity of the area.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy

to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision
of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.14 (2015) Existing Housing - Efficient use of stock
LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local

Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Richard Conroy Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 2nd August 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



%

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

17 Maylands Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
65665/APP/2016/3230 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sopithe o1 February 2017

TYILLINGDON
LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Agenda ltem 12

PART Il - STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Document is Restricted

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Agenda ltem 13

PART Il - STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Document is Restricted

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Agenda ltem 14

PART Il - STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Document is Restricted

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



Agenda ltem 15

PART Il - STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Document is Restricted

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



Agenda Item 16

PART Il - STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Document is Restricted

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Central & South
Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 8th February
2017

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 114 HARMONDSWORTH ROAD WEST DRAYTON

Development: Change of use from Use Class D1 (Non-Residential Institutions) to Use Class
B1/D1 (Non-Residential Institutions/Business) to use as a training centre and
ancillary video production and installation of solar panels to side roof
(Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 52467/APP/2016/3892

Date Plans Received: 21/10/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 20/10/2016
Date Application Valid: 02/12/2016 28/11/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



Street@

SITE LOCATION PLAN
AREA 2 HA
SCALE: 1:1250 on A4
CENTRE COORDINATES: 506347 , 178676

ihigr 100048474

Q

Supplied by Streetwise Maps Ltd
www.streetwise.net
Licence No: 100047474

21:48:13 20/10/2016

Page 137




8 Lot oseEHvLLEL

A O DHa

A MARYHO SL0TH0BE 3UvO

00k - IS

ST SNULESE
UL DHIMYED

MOLAYED L53M
OVOH HLHOMSAONOWSYH trli

FL 80N

woo yeoyE | vesewedbuuund T3
55500654400 1AL

23 18N TIHLNOS

OO OY0OH HLHON

FOvVMYD HIMON 51

AL ¥ ST

AHDHADOD

NOISIASY EIL]

g e Guipnng Auoyity |E30Y oyl o)
oo PURMIC) U SIHFUST 9L LaReTeiRY
183913 {%00Z) LD0Z11L0L 5O B pue aleajas
UOGEMEUOI-HBS BUL 0 K000 B U10q NG 1S
D BUL SO JEISND By} 1 UoRi

0 24P DF UM IRRdA 10GUeD BuipIng
AyEouiny (8307 1 OF BEIHLES UDIIEXLIEY
0% B PUDE O B LOS10d Ut By
WS

Aijaines ag) A pesiciine (DIZ0N 0 ' Lidv
YEDTT 158 ') PSS Bonem L8
(B0 UE m paoss B uokiad jomadioas
o (fagus PRl o Bed unienEag
Buiping pue souwpens) Bulaps LomPa UL L 9L
“(PO0E) LG0T AL S8 0 SusLLSEnDa Syl yim
SIUNRIAI0E L PONSE] pUE pajaadsul 'phyesu)
‘poulisap g v gaom (e pue Buui iy

SUOBPUBLEALGIA GYES S O] PUBR
sHingsu pamiRba apes TR Ag ine

PHUED B 07 SEEAIOG OF B

SUCEPUMUILOoR BinnuEL

o) geudEw femdod y

SR, SHLTL

fi pancidde T8 welwaesle Jang pIng Y

EOUERILOT Ul I0M §E BINSUS O] 1BING
Wawidaitig IAG PANg JHIEM SHUEY | T SEEL BY

209 IR AT L Yl 2aumdwes wy RgisuadEa IBUnD
spadsa

e uy Aing fidies pue sogou Buapgng anes of lepjing
ankgur Buping-Apogine

TED] B UDNINISHES U1 0] S0 0L 20 I

Tunsxa yaiew 0} SE0EHNS EUHE Iy

SIS

TR YN FTOTIE U] 3 ) SHI0M U Iy
“Boped j0 PO ‘SPUEPURIS USHUE Y3 Rdioo of oM 1y
BYFE UD DAUSA SUCIEUSLLPD Iy

(00Z:1 3T¥DS) NV1d MD018 DNILSIXI

_3SNOH SANOFHOIN INILSIA |

[ —— - TN ARNONGO — —
i g
| ¥
o

I
_ HOLAVHG 1530
1 OYORN LYOMSONOWHYH

Eli] PLLON DNILSIX NIOUYD
?ﬁm INGH4
]
]
)
Lo smmme” S

FONTI uvannog

FSNOH SHNCEHDIIN DNILSDG !
(papawa Budg Apuaind 5

iy ‘31eE Puiaixa syl jo Busbueg ayl jnoge Bupuiegdwos anoqybiau

PUG 0} SR WIPIWod Ajuo aun asn aul BuipieBas dpgnd Ayl

10 SI3gLUDW AQ Pas|E) U0 aAEY S1UiE|dwod ou 1EYL paioU ag 03 51

e AJUAUE JRoQYBIU PRONPIL B S| DIAYY AIRaH

‘afiEasn AsBIng 5101300 snompd Byl UBYL $53)
Apuesiyubs sp (Buipuaite suosiad jo saquinu &)
250 B JO ATISUD 181 41 1YL PRIOU 3G 01 51 0}

DS SSNPD B8N 1] Y1 UIYHM S SN 1WRIXD Y|

TS |8 AR YL
Bujumi} pue suclinyisul [BRUapsai-uan) (g st BE0 B "BIuaY

uonInpoud oapia IsNoY-ul jo
WAL aja Auejjoue fews e 5 auagy Bujmen AydesSoapa Apewpd
"BULI] [PUOEI0A/FUOTIEINGS SaPIAo 1BYL WY E S PIRAIER,

E 10T Ul Aadoud Byl UD 001 UONPDSSY DRI PUE [BUONEINRET
pleniey srapdna00 wauns ay ) ~Aabung saoxog pabiejus ue o)
pauRiE sem WISV [00Z/P0/P0 UQ AABING 510000 B SEOSEL
asopag wWop pasn Gurag 'asn | Weks U Sey sasiwasd By |
FL0ON OL B340 DNINNY I

i AUy ou

“s3310n pasiel ou “B'a Bulias IpsaW0p AUE Ul PUNDY 30 PINOM RS04 I8
D) BSHOU A 1YL PAIOU 3G 01 $1 L) U 3N O1 3y YL IR s
PUE 3 1p2 PUB MOYS 341 Wiy A3y pue dn jas st punosbipeg aly ) padapoud
BB ABOMOIISE UR FARY 01 WO 3] SPUMIE JABO|0NSY Uy (0LIBualE
{exdAy Bumogoy ay3sad s 20ejd SaqET WADOE SILY U) JUBLLS|E SSM0Y-UY 34 ]
(spuncuByIeg) Bupew 135 -
Aupdeiboapes -

10 51515000 woos syt up Bures |

WOOH NOLLONAORES D301A
ISNOH NISE WOOH SNINIVEL

NV1d 40014 LS¥ld DNLLSIX3

o
o
o
b
ELEELFS ] o
| o
Lt o |} IDVHEOLS

1331440 44V 15

e ™ |
A
1 - NAOHYD LNOH
- y
ry -

f _=

NIOERD
uvid

31420 44¥LS

WOOH DNINIVEL +1
FILLINIHDLA
(WODH NOWNODD

Il -

NY1d 40074 ANNOYD DNILSIX3

AiaBins 5301000 34t jo
wred g s SEm LI SEyL pun|
He15 504 pasn Bulag Se jjam e § s

ISNOH SHNDTHIIN INILSINT Alay000 aanpoud 01 moy UG suosiad B_.c.u.‘_
—

Page

ADINIY AUVANNOR

e e e e e e e
. %
_ ;— = L._ = : :
| v f
_ | _
' = =) ]
_ ‘un.nz\“. 7 WOODY DHINYYEL | HOiL43D38 mﬁ / .
' | WOOE NDILINGO¥L 03AIA = % | N ! -
_ 1 ISNOH NIJE WOOY SNINIVEL - - R | =
1 & B g 4
[ELEIL] / _ H : ] : ﬁ
_ REEEY | | —— NIOHYD INDHI
| iny N
| m
] M >
_ i | WOOE ONINYYEL i
I =
_ - L
-
—" 2am
(] | r_ aavsia —‘
! %_\ - [ ! t
| o 100
g A
L e !

AIN3L AMVONNOR

SONYLS 31343
E X ONLLSDE

FSNOH S HNOBHDIIIN DNFLSIXT




OL/v0EY

oy

74

NV d 400 O

MNILSIX

NE7

TR T Y

VD MO0 LSaH €

BAYO UILDE

WOO UoALIWIOD

SO0 BSINY

NYId 3007 ONNOED <

... ==
Agqoy .7
woos Bugjiem
| _
_ uondasal # )
1o _
DM PalaESIp | e

_ —

4 3
LUOC UOHENSUoD WOO USIENNSUGD

Page 139



ZOVAUMEHFLLOL

Add O DH0

A O Moz dIs e Ava

0011 IS

SNOILYATTE SNLLSIND
UL DNV

NOLAYHO 1S3M
VO HIHOMSONOWEYH ¥1LE

ERIITR: sy

LLBEY RO | uossaiedBrineg! Y-
SSS006 54440 1L

4 16 TIVHLNOS

MR OWOH HIHON

v HIHOM 51

ALV SN

LHDTAOD

NOESIATH Ava

R 0D BUIE AGUIY 8207 ) 0
S (LRI (LI IO 58 | LONERRIS)
TERIDGE (00Z) LOOZ 1IOL SE B PR slesgns

B L 0 Adao & s

TR0 B | SHRA (RGN BUY 0 LG
b SAED (1 UG Jusiusjdag) auaD) Gupeng

AR [0 U D) SIS UONER

115 B Ui o 51 s e s
G

AUE)BIOG BU) A PUSUOUINE (DITOIN 10 LidvN
'WEIT1 198 TS} AUDYIS BHEDYII0S- RIS
ERIeR Uk (g passBal uossad JuRRduE
B A (Rajes mraeh o P onenioyg
Danpyinegy putr e mpiney Dulsiy Uoaie i) | &g
(POOE) LO0Z 1494 S8 10 SIURUDRND B} U
POUISHP 60 1 HS0M (G0 DL BULI iy

SUNEPIEICH0) ST 585 0] PUR
Sl peieisilian siRg SRO AQ

FOLUIE B4 ) SITDAB0 Of SHIIAY

SUORUPURLEICOR) SRMDHEIIB

o s Ao iy

JNBAR S|

ey pasnucin 5B Rasaaulie SAC0 PING Ui
OUERCALICD. U RIW, IR QTS OF SOpEnE
N JAAC) PHME] FXEM STRULL 'E 9661 Y

S R FUES b L SIS 30 SIOTEUONSE] JBUMD)
“spadsal

175 8 Ay ks pus aaou SURiing BAses of Jepang
sokanns SUIping-Ausgne

1B B 0 CREIRISIES B 0 B OF 3a0a )y

Ehagspes SRIRRL O BEIENS BURED Y

S

AU L[ EEHSTIE L O] O SHIOM [ELLISHN [

GHDER 0 BH07) “SPURPLICIS YSIUE Yl AERLIOT O] H0M Iy
‘RS UD POYISIA SUOSUTRIAD [T

(3DNVHD ON d3S0d0yd)
NOILVYA3T3 3dIS L4371 DNILSIX3

Lm

sy sejos—"
obeiu01y 199115 3Y WOLY B|qisiA Ajipeat
10U a4 Yons se pue (3do|s JOOL) UOIIRAD|D
apis 143| 2yl 01 pared0o| ale sjaued te|os
‘310N O ¥3D1440 DUINNVd

(3IDNVHD ON Q3S0d0¥d)
NOILVAIT3 ¥v3d DNILSI3

(3DNVHD ON d3S0d0Oud)
NOILVYATT3 LNOYd4 DNILSIX3

U o

l
l

|

(3DNVHD ON Q3S0d0O¥Yd)
NOILYAIT3 34IS LHDIY DNILSIX3

Page 140




LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LONDON

N~
—
o
(o]
(=]
red o
e » ]
a . u
o o e
12 = o &
&) s @
g |5 BE
(@] ~—
<
3 o A
[72] (=] ©
© (o] =
c R
g |se| ¥
-
= Rm .0
c (B}
o =
T [2a|g 3
<r oL | ®©
— 1= [
" a < E 4=
% - Q = o c
] <P |0 @
= o © -’
M c = = o
< c N |E
@ c c
= o o
W o o
D o
£ E £
= E%B b=
W = = ENn oo o o
@ = 28+« ¢ ) .
T 9 22 @ wm
cC @9 , 080® ke =
S ¥ soot ® 53
c U moo I B
O g gowc [
& 5 —To® ...mm,am
@ S PRrceBhRES
=2 & pg¥ gL a0aDdE
0 g o5 z2@a< 4 9%5E
[ EeECCpO
i 0 22505 <0o0m
") E St asSeC ol@y
@ t a2 oncwE5cod
+= - S8 EEE pEZVD
= s e E B R588
O c © & O6G €
Z L fEsnlxs s022




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 31 BRYONY CLOSE HILLINGDON

Development: Erection of two storey side and single storey rear extension and demolition of
existing outbuilding.

LBH Ref Nos: 72073/APP/2016/2692

Date Plans Received: 12/07/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 25/10/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



Tam

LAt

CHerang
ey
S
[ |
WA /T S|
i
Hoe|
DS
B
YR 98T
SHOISIC
g MO SOI MO WS
Y QR0 I SRIVWANY
............ D B 2
2045 BONONNE o e
gOD& »ime i3
it WIS (e
141y ST =

oo

___________

HE & % o a0 %8 9 r W OO

DO NOULYATH 3015 SNLSIE

]
st peapuas b poadc sann s o Basog,
e . %
{OOR NOK AT 3015 03504084 00 NILYATIE Y38 0350408 QO NCUYATIE INC 0350404
st Bl R .@._l_l_l_ @ r e

[EITHT 37

QUIRCHYNTIE N DNl

i
Hi=ig

COHNDUFATE N0 DML

(ap]
<t
4
(]
(@]
]
o
OCHN 008 LG OO H00H 1543 WS 0NV E00H ONIOND INIST
.h il I Y -~ N
]
M% R
o ._.s.n om
- e
oNn
__________________ OIS

WO 6 8 409 S P & LMW O




Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

31 Bryony Close

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72073/APP/2016/2692 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Seufjp, 144 | February 2017

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 92 PIELD HEATH ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Erection of a three storey building to create 3 x 1-bed self contained flats and
3 x studio flats with associated cycle parking

LBH Ref Nos: 12504/APP/2016/4179

Date Plans Received: 15/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 15/11/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



upld e4g rNE gdan vopBuy SRBCIT TP L0 XB4/9L
% UoIoo0oT] POOY WOBH pield 26 AT 1dH SUSH
g 10 pod Buuue) puoy peasduiap] [awapy
SIMOBIN
m Bupiod ai2A2 pepoInosD “ynos wo.,”,.a__h“.wz nN
u UM SJOY SOIONIS £ PUD Sjoy 10dod s B N
: sL/oL/so uewﬁquo ﬂ@m ped Lxe-ajoel
&l snowsn ©1BUPING ASI0is ¢ 10 UoeA] P31 JUSWIDGBURIA] §103[014 9811801
u
[
————— I I
4
o
g »
o &>
S5
=8 c
o2
Lym
=& 2
o ]
b o
&5
L O L
(0SZ1:1) NYd NOILYDOT -
N

Kb b B 9
0 BERERLID 38 200 3 R

510 $oecrel a1 PO

80USS [PeP.IDOq
9010 UBIY 008}

o140d

SUlq 8] |eeUm
441 OLL %2

—2Z
(00Z:1) NW1d ALS
e g
,- 9409
B ALY
v
< e
Lol
—aiiine
AMRAL OO
L)
9409
e s
ASwOLE TN ~N
mx
il eADID 23
\ Pegol wug - _l&°
] o3
" a
»
. 4850077
o318 "ON 9

SOUSS DEPIDOG
0%0|0 UBIY 0081

90UBS PEPJIDOG
o805 UBIU 008

Page 146




'NE 88N uopBuliH
suojd pssodosd POOoY WDaH pleld 26
Jo ppd Bujuwio) pun’

SRBEIT THP10 XeA/2L
AT1 1dH SHaH
peajsdurap] [awapy
SAMOJIEW LO
UNO7Y SIMOLIRJA ‘€

Buppod 8240 pajoInosD
LJiM SJoy SOJpNIS € PUD sjoy
pauDuod J|8s pag | Xg ajnal +UQOAH_ S8

o} Buping Aeiojs ¢ Jo r_o_#om:w— PY1 H_.H—DEOWNC.NE MHUOM.O.HH— Dwmwm o1g

SL/ol/so

UD|d Jo0}4 punoIS

\ F0VdS ALINIWNY

m L 1w
FOVAS ALINTHY
Z1vd
[ | E SNINID
7 JONNOT
NIHOL i n_murMmm
JONNOT _ _ 3584
Zwge WrOL 1 I
olants J_«zwm%_ -
tivid (. INIHdLOOS
UMHS
____ 1 a3s
| : B = I
pos = 7 H NIHOLIN
“ oom ~ *
N Hiva
AJHOLS TIONIS
[
8
o
\ \
]

[ —]

40 B D 54 Dok 1

Page 147




SL/ol/so

suo|d pasodold

Buppod 8240 pajoInosD
LJiM SJoy SOJpNIS € PUD sjoy
pauDuod J|8s pag | Xg ajnal

©1Buiping A8iois ¢ Jo voreest pyy juowaeury syo9(o1g a3nsarg

'NE 88N uopBuliH
pPOOY YOBH Pleld 26
Jo ppd Bujuwio) pun’

Jodod SiA R I

888C1T THPI0 XBA/|2L
711 1dH SMaH
peajsdurap] [awapy
SAMOJIEW LO
“UN0) SAIMOIEA ‘¢

=

FONNOT

Twge
olanLs
¥ Lvd

MNIHILM

HMHS

uo|d JOO} Isild

S

g

_Emmmmmmmmmmmm,
g

AFHOLS FTIONIS

[ —]

0 LD 8 % 0]

[ 100 Bosang i 154 Bosmt oo

ONINIO
F9NNOT
TUES
1v14 038 |
£1v1d
ZWpoL |y I
TYNYILNI
1NMd1004
1 a3g
= 1
NIHDILM
HLvd

—[%

|

uDj|d 1004 puoo8g

FONNOT

Tuige
Qlanis
91vd

CAFOL
TYNHILNI
AINIEdLO0d

NIHILA

g

E—
DNINIO
FONNOT
TWES
1y4a3g L
— G1vid
~
[
/
4 I
Ve
= L g3a

Page 148




rNE 2an uopbuliH BYEIT TrPLO XBA/PL

\4 +00/1d £09 suoneAa|3 pesodold peOY YiesH plaid 26 AT TdH ‘SHSH
: axtmesa jo Med Bujwiod puen peajsduway [way

-] ——— s Buiyied ejoka pejeisoss BN SIMOEW L9
ylim siej) solpnis £ pue sie| jedod sipy .m;E “UNe;) SIMOIRY ‘¢

00L:L GLi0L/S0 aulejuod jjes paq Lxg ajeal

BLip|ii Keiols:€ 30 immm_ P11 JuowraeueA syoaford a3nsarg

CULAL 40 335 & 53U

ALIHYTIO HO4 AIAOWIH SONIATING D1LXT 'aVOH HLYIH A131d NOILYAI T3 3AIS

SMOpUIM pue sioop Aaig
sjjem palepual siym

SMOPUIM YoTew o pajured
ylomaLLe.) [elaW [BInonis
U S8JU02[eq PaZE|D)

pes| Aa.b yiep elenwis o}
Buneays aysodwios Aeib sieqg

jool ey ssejfeiqypinbry __—

il m S L 3

2 By 0 ) ) S

ppy Py 55 0 B T
R EINARN R

UOHEPIEA 10} PApUBWY GL/0LSL W

\

wnie sseif eanjonig

avOd H1v3H a131d NOILVAZT3 3dIS

avOod WYHTOO NOILVYAZTE INOHA

winiye ssejf [einjonis




S00/1

£09

0041

SL/oL/so

PNE sgn uopbuliiH

88BELT THP10 *BA/1AL
suopeasj3 pasodold

PeOY YleaH piaid 26 A1 1dH SHIH

LI jo ped Buiuuod pue peajsduaf] [ouwsg

Bupped sjoko pajeiooss SEMY SOMO[IBIN L9
Yiim sje) solpnig € pue sjej

1edod i 2 I

U0 saMOTEI ‘g
8UIEIUOD J|85 Paq LXg 8

Buiping feiors ¢ 4o E._.E.m_ Py uowoBeue]y s3oafo1 a8nsaid

lplan B L 3
o 0 By R S 0D
P8 Ly BT [ 0 P 06 R S

s v B 04 Bt € e e

u NOILYAZTI MNV 4

Eloop Aai5)

bual SIUM

Bunesys sjisolt]

j00. 1e}) sse|Baiqy pinbig

16 y.ep aye|nwiis 0}
ansodwoo Aaibyieqg

jool el sse|Baigy pinbi

UOHEPIEA JO} PSpUSWIY GL/OLSE Y

ALIHY10 HO4 A3AOW3H SONIATING ©1X3 ‘NOILYAT T3 HY3Y

NOILVYAZ 13 dv3d

Dage 150




'NE 8an uopbullii{ $88EIT THYI0 ¥ed/IPL LOIEPIEA 10} PEpUSLUY SLIOLGE ¥
900/1d senosdsiad pasodoid pEOY YIBSH Plold 26 AT1 1dH SUoH B
simveg jo ped Bujwiod pul peajsduay jsurap
Buiyied ajaha psieisoss =3 SIMOLBIN LO

YIIM S1B|} SOIPNIS € Pue sie| edod sI B AW “4IN07) SoMolRe ‘C
BUIRjUOD j|8s peq LXE
Buipjing Asi0}s ¢ jo uonoe.

A py7uoweeueyy spafo1g 93nsarg

AOHA MIIATVIHIY

A

avod WYH100 JAILOTdSHId LNOHS

i e SRR o B S

dv3d WOHd M3IA TVIH3IY

avO4d H1V3H d13id A LO3dSHId INOH4

Eago 151




Car Park

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Land forming part of %':sli'!'ﬂ;' EE?VE:SSN

Fer idenfification prmpsesonly: 92 Pield Heath Road Planning Section

This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the ; . ’ 5 .

Bopyright, Desinsand Palerts Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 12504/APP/2016/4179 1:1,000

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: :

© Crown copyright and database F“wi H ﬂ |} l NT !\} ) i\“

ights 2016 Ord S ITTILLIIN GO LOIN

2!80;19283 rdnance Survey Central & S%H-é 152 February 2017 LUNDD:_E N




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 54 AND 56 STAR ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: 1 x 2-bed, detached bungalow with associated parking and amenity space
involving demolition of existing garage block.

LBH Ref Nos: 70020/APP/2016/4467

Date Plans Received:  13/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 22/12/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 153



q g | was | sreassy | plosgear| 229 Srag faneld
VY ionomq ERNET DA

‘wovpd] M Ao ub posd

C voeryr o Fug o 2pispvod swig Aoy Wikl S St AN op b Shaidmosomerviumg
S 40 E 13131 g25%odd pye #2019 _ ’
MOTYINNE 930V
groora¥uT ' op | Qiscacdd
"x3%3N04G1A ° D dmexn

qwoTE AavLS

95oN Y ¥S op 20 BVIB LY QY]

@zt NG

S g ) 5 3

o .Y IS
MY T ADDTT Alxscodoad

AFRIN 3] ANNea D

Page 154

A- = S S - e A e s s gt e - S P | |”... RSN FUSTS————————-
™ o5 9N __
= 1 |
> 4 e e e *— - — - - - - | l
: ! _
N I |
: > 45 ©n [
A % SdI ML) I i
“ Nalsmg SIS
o nows vy d1is |
R gp|— / 5 ai@dqu;.iom»ua.aahm.o_qu \a 218 ?_Qz FrEwiry l.ﬂz 1 M._U i
) S i st L -7 >
3 10 Sioineg | breod Mo ® b _
1 ayed 514V 9250 40dd & % n |
N i~ o » |
o e \SoMmos Ma Savqn ) Jona o e 0 3
[y Jeyarineg \ | g |
PRIASTRY _ v |
vary aerasuag | g _
> ! dausmonig e B [
e ATV BN D IrLSINT |
pavs o 21049 .
et o - * e e o Qa3ngdiesn
ﬁ’ﬂ.ﬂﬁlﬂﬂfﬂ: “_ < e |
qJan 1 11 ~dd O VLS
RO maﬁm’m.z_z ﬂioﬁu (DEVA vy Hes) 95 on O Iﬂl i ..fJfJJ.wJog:u,”__,:.“m_
FOVAS M NBWY N T 37ves fumany w88 SRR nU(\_
' 4 i A [
.m N 3745 aY2 : 11 ! | |
BT D Sk e — - e — A o = et |
.C.W.f‘\ T 7 - i s _
; 1Tt L (Aven 3meiaerli) 4 : 25 ON AV |
} Iz | ! _
e e e - |




. o oaq shu w4 3 o817 21¥3% .
) [RES |ooews svl 2107 929 P ——— _
Y omezmg|  3wes sival | SaDian ¥ £ H 3 o |
I
S 30 7 L33n% f _
‘WYd meend annems // L o5} 3 w2s
mornn dafavia B06nd QMRS - NV
: _ 5 ~
ShGuaq3! ¢ an | GRaSCduway ~ ; 4 1 w
X353790 A T x == o s Stk e Rt e o S X |
Aavanneg, \....* 7
‘oqraa R0 m“i |
QVo™ Ay LS 1 m m "
! Awvoy 53372y _Qt_hﬁju_\ el 0 _
9% ANy §5 ON 40 WYIE b ANV . ¥ Lol Bl n |
Acsp 3PYV 20 m../ ) _
| . —
| | . L-A b _
- oo T e . |
s e T 0o9g | aat]| / . Q| :
| — - - — — — — [ — —m — — i Fbe L === — lYl.dl - - e — “IIIIIII.Iul  — — -
a \Nuhﬂ ™~ h iz A Lﬂuﬁ_”mww% T
: g Y e g i ; s S T ol o @i _.x.«_e.mﬂ ML agpa H
o i 1 = SN |
_ > 1 “Bine 9 gy bl
= | W ‘ \ \_ \C _ fosvanace x __
n | : L 7 |
« __ f (4PVIAG p=aj tram) _ n =
i _
. 1 reHsd g |
: s aved 55393 ) S
! - Y114 b 4 © 7
| ) wfl,
% >
j T i .(T\\U \..\.\.\ r c __
4.4\ ; sSEVID
| _ H_ I e i - | asasens .“..._
& L Z0vds ondxd A il v g ha
— @I _f _
a _ ﬂJ A |
i 0 7% = A -
¥ 1 ZEINAT m h _
( fanz 1 A 5 |
ey §aamens %R) % b y
£ pusa9d TAIVAW | x/t.:n_er_ 7 # _
AR 9950 mervyonng | 1 i i 3
| Qamem Iy AON NLYR ! W as-395g _
“\ 5 |
i = ~ = A
i 7| b N | sk *
.\ i 1
i g i
L
¥ ] 4 == | e Ly
<] — — — — <
.. i = .
| ]




d
-~/

19z W
Alvg

MeeHs W
3125

S| wus
"o =%a

g 20 5§ 1335 "foyd SNelbvagig
Moy rmd ARIVIAG
SwcoaTia T on | Q33Cdeddq

‘%353 1990 ' 3zEE RN
aved dvLS
25 aey ¥S 30 ay3ia oL apy

S 9o Saak Py g

o5tk VRS
NV AYS

ool AW?2S -

SaaLad 9

qyoa HLY3H

—

O

| _u_..ll Jﬁ
=1 g =
e 28 l ¥5
Tk
] } = &
) [
1 A
E= ]
= i
: !
—

Qved AYLS

5

v 5 T ¥ o

@cly 3RS

mOILvA3IN 3 AoV T

(@rensawnl 1anAYY
T cnguiadl

Proyaeagi 8

13710L 40 NOWDIS T9NdAL.

if
_u._..:__.’
.......,_x-i '
I

apll} INNIS

PR AERERC R

gRy D Qalseay

\

=t

FINSVIOHI]
$AZVAIVD I LS

&r.r,u; T |

Sa%maH WML M2y oL)
53l mmMoTE hI9IY YHS

I & “
2Pz B _ [
2 7 1
. | >4 |
VA il [} 7 _ g &
A=A ’ 2 M ° |
ey P p— X _
—— e — — 3”
S = Fi
. ——— — _ “fn .L?.I
| |
oﬂx_ Ly ved 209 N
Q.r_:_ﬁ_.. 3nL n| Faston (ALimaip 24y
23LO pLYH Oh.u oot WIS ™1 535004 PHNLO HOLYKH
©@1 iy VIS wA21UQ HMOBG H519TE ‘ - oL) G2TYT 3719000 3L N
POolLyAZ1g QN3 NOILVAIT3 LNOad &aovwgqiawuooa
S " e ————————— r -
Ih I 7
/
1 SIID qaLsey /
/ _ =77 4 T = \1... —_— 1 H
- s, A ] ]
£h ._ S | | [ 1l
" ~ . . P ) — T [NR
D_w.im,_ Lo 4 N <y A
iﬂMﬂmr‘L ® | == ' . ! I = ] E |
{ ' |= _ , .
NEXE e | e = - PR — =
— | =
INp3AY |_.I[ - Jfr!\ml = e |_J
ERELUH \ —— = =

Page 156




Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land at rear of
54 & 56 Star Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
70020/APP/2016/4467 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sopithe 157 February 2017

THILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address EURO GARAGES HEATHROW NORTH SHEPISTON LANE HAYES
Development: Single storey side extension and chiller unit to rear

LBH Ref Nos: 17981/APP/2016/3287

Date Plans Received: 31/08/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 25/10/2016
Date Application Valid: 15/09/2016 15/09/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 158



sniges [

Sebrnngsy Hlileng _H_
ainsdidyy Bemammn g
Lo
ey

ranss| Bumesg

£V @ 00571 AWDS

sBuweid 595 eleos

uejg uonEaoT | Big

wsg

¥ @ 000kl 3OS
NV1d Y0018 d3S0d0¥d

‘el s
F§3 33
o
W =
:
= g paioeyd

W S| umesg

D e ALY T
T
i) sy | ey
sajop Uo|sirey

GLOTOL'SE Eeg voIsiAeY
AOTAOVE  :eleQ eNss|
ey ivoud  coN Bumelg

N
sdnoig poajosd

"ONIMYEO STHL WOMd 3TY0S LON 00

.a_.n._ui.—

10 Bupepso 10 wom 100 Buikiea o) sopd
ANS U0 SHOPSUBLED (|8 %3345 o) 51 (ejiddng
‘w3 aenueg a) Bumep siu Bursn
Buofuy p 0L 'R

Uf 88 SUDSUBLUIP (I} 'O1[S LD HIOM JO
IUSLUASUBLALOT O] 04 PALILIOA UK POXIBD

g Jsmu sBuimesq |y uossialed Jopd
INGUIA PIMOITE 51 UOIEAROSIE) O PUT pIY
saflesen om3 jo WBuidoo ayy s Bupwesp sy

wioosafeseBoina mmm pm
wen'saBeiebomadsoumbus 3
BELO05 ¥5Z10 4
FLEZES PSZMG L

337 186
atyseauEy
[LLEETE ]

peoy uapBuysey
Wieg Buipel] ssgaeg
ASNOH 0iNg

417 s39vVHvo oun3

£y @ 0sziiL 3OS

NY1d 31IS ONILSIX3

TEFZTO00L MGUAN BIUOSM ‘PRRARGR il I ‘9102 Bufdan whais (3

EEFZZO00L 19awiny oue] peaesss siuBu iy ‘9L gz uBinhaen GMs (2) Anng sausupir)

£y @ 05z 308
NV1d NOILYDO1

=S .,

sadeler)o0iny

90




WD Iws:
{uonEnalg UINos) vaanl ops dous pasodold

i oS pasdild
pauociisodas
2q 03 WLY Bupsixg
sy
i e i e it P

W Booi L Ivos B0 TS
__En?ahﬁig.s.msﬁnﬂ.wugm FUOHBAS T LENOS) UHBASET B doug BuRsh)

Page 160" o =

-Suahv BN
ln.-u _.3!?.; &l
Bupsuag pasodold manN
Wbt s
el dous B
7




Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Euro Garages
Heathrow North
Shepiston Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
17981/APP/2016/3287 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sopithe 161 February 2017

TYILLINGDON
LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 17 MAYLANDS DRIVE UXBRIDGE

Development: Erection of boundary fence, single storey outbuilding (for storage and
playspace use (30sgm)), and stepped access to rear garden.

LBH Ref Nos: 65665/APP/2016/3230

Date Plans Received: 25/08/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 25/08/2016
Date Application Valid: 25/08/2016 04/01/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 8th February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



Street@ @

SITE LOCATION PLAN
AREA 2 HA
SCALE 1:1250 on A4
CENTRE COORDINATES: 505814, 184968
ADDRESS: 17 MAYLANDS DRIVE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1BH

14 Licence mumber 100047474

4\

;@ e ’; C opy gt

o

Supplied by Streetwise Maps Ltd
www.streetwise.net
Licence No: 100047474
18/08/2016 11:32

Page 163



Feenoeiie ® A A S W | & ¥ 1 4 & 6
| Ha g0 YIS0 H0REK [T s s — e —
WO OVUAML YOW) o e % (6) B¥8 3T¥IS 201:1

eI s

®
i Aneruisaplynan oy |

'SNOLLYATTE 'SV Td $0074 Q350d08d suness
RODHOT H30¥36 ; 5 |
AT g worosapli i 3 |2m i .____mmam il
0¥ INGHANT 77 R N e L o0 bume
00K ATHIY 2R i 5 T = |
sy s || LU ) W OB O T NOiLvAdI13
3015 03sS0d0Hd LHOodd 03504084

o] gvg 371¥)8 0524

BEEIL - NYTd 1AQAYT FLLS WY 1d .z___._a 40074
4008 035040dd ONANOCED 0350d04dd

S 2 P
e

[

IniED SONYIANK

i |
\! it = 4
WG
3@.

LR L

Keniinjap

ROIilvyna3ll . NO11vA3l3
3015 0385040484 AR T E¥318 0350d084
T WA Rl

42050 111 0 )
sz«_.zz.nvs.&th

o [

B syt 1
Hibay £ DR o f“
@ s \
. ._m
5 ol 5 s 52 ]
IIIII S oI LYh3I3 N1 1¥A373
(] B¥G 3TVIS 052401 3015 BHILS)x3 301 BMNILSIK3 ¥¥ 38 TNILSIX3
BSELE - NYId NOTLVIDT
) 3

ISNO0OH 40 ¥4¥3Y 01 Sd3LS TYNYILXIT % ONIQTINGLINO A3YOLS FTONIS ¥ 404 STI¥SO0d0dd ININNY I
HalL 880 X3ISIT00IW 3901d8XN FIAI¥0 SONYIAVYM tL LY ONY]




pajjop umoys 1 Q
3u3) q/3 sjaued 33usy q/ ybiy
ybiy wg| buiysixa wg| Jaqunu 4 pasodoJd

3u34 g/
4oy wg Buysixe

e I

0081

TS

Page 165



%

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

17 Maylands Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
65665/APP/2016/3230 1:1,000
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Seufj, 166 | February 2017

TYILLINGDON
LONDON




	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 114 Harmondsworth Road - 52467/APP/2016/3892
	7 31 Bryony Close - 72073/APP/2016/2692
	8 Land forming part of 92 Pield Heath Road - 12504/APP/2016/4179
	9 Land to the rear of 54 & 56 Star Road - 70020/APP/2016/4467
	10 Euro Garages, Heathrow North, Shepiston Lane - 17981/APP/2016/3287
	11 17 Maylands Drive - 65665/APP/2016/3230
	12 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	13 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	14 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	15 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	16 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee

